
Committed to creating shareholder value by: 

Focusing on customer needs. 

Providing quality products. 

Positioning for the future. 

Contributing to the quality of life for employees and communities. 

'I\.. 

Temple-Inland 
1999 Annual Report 
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Temple-Inland Inc. is a holding company with operations in paper, 
building products and financial services. 

Temple-Inland Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was organized in 1983. Its principal subsidiaries include Inland Paperboard and 
Packaging, Inc.; Temple-Inland Forest Products Corporation; Temple-Inland Financial Services Inc.; Guaranty Federal Bank, FS.B.; and 
Temple-Inland Mortgage Corporation. 

Temple-Inland 's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange under the ticker symbol TIN. 

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The actual results achieved by 
Temple-Inland may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such 
differences include general economic, market or business conditions; the opportunities (or lack thereof) that may be presented to and 
pursued by Temple-Inland and its subsidiaries; the availability and price of raw materials used by Temple-Inland and its subsidiaries; 
competitive actions by other companies; changes in laws or regulations; and other circumstances, many of which are beyond the 
control of Temple-Inland and its subsidiaries. 

(in millions, except per share data) 

Total revenues 

Manufacturing net revenues 

Income from continuing 
operations 

Net income 

Earnings per share from 
continuing operations: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Net earnings per share: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Dividends per share 

Shareholders' equity 

Book value per share 

Weighted average shares 
outstanding: 

Basic 

Diluted 

Common shares 
outstanding at year end 

(in millions) 

REVENUES 

Paper 

Building Products 

Financial Services 

OPERATING INCOME 

Paper 

Building Products 
Financial Services 

Percent 
mID 1998 Change 

~ I $ 3,291 12 % 

~ $ 2,255 14 % 

@ l](j)] $ 88 117 % 

© @D $ 64 55 % 

§~ $ 1.60 116 % 

® 8la) $ 1.59 116 % 

~ D~~ $ 1.16 54 % 

~~ n~1!3 $ 1.15 55 % 

@ i]J};J $ 1.28 

~~ $ 1,998 (4)% 

~ $ 35.93 (1)% 

~ 55.8 

~ 55.9 

~ 55.6 (3)% 

Percent 
UJJJ) 1998 Change 

@JYR13 $ 1,642 10 % 

@ 'm $ 613 25 % 

@~ $ 1,036 8 % 

§ mJl $ 39 164 % 

© D'iMJ $ 112 55 % 
@ nm $ 154 (10)% 
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A Leader with Commitment and Vision. 
Succes.~fitl companies a re most <?{ten created hy a comhina t ion <?f' sere ml key .fi lCtors. 

includi11g strong leadership and great people. C!Ufim/ Grum fJerso11(fies lwth. 

Through dedicated leudershi/J and stmtep)c l'ision. C/Ufim/ led Temple-lnlwu/.fimn its 

creation as a spin-qfT com1wny in I 98 I through its groll'th into <1 strong. dil'ers(fied 

mw11{/i1cturing wu/.financial sercices entity. 

Sixtee11 years is a relatil'e~y short time in the conte.rt <d' a cotpomte entity·s I(/(, span. 

hut Tem1>le-/11lwu/ has acrnmplislwd 111uch in th<1l I ime under UUfiml Grum ·s 

leadership. When Temple-/11land zrns spun <d/Jimn Time Inc. in 1981. the co1111H1ny 

had $1.2 hillion in 01wmtinp: recenw•s. employed 10.000 JH'O/>le and omwd 

1.1 million acres <f.fiJrestland in Texas <111d Georp.ia. Tod<1y. rerentws hal'e tripled to 

$3. 7 hill ion: and the com1><1ny note has orer I IJ)()() employees wu/ ozcn.'i more than 

2 million acTes <?fji>restland. Throup.h a numlwr <?/' 

strategic an1uisitions driren l>y C/Ufim/. Te1111>le-lnlwurs 

financial serrices gmu1> hus p.rozrn .fimn a snwll mortp.ap;e 

lwnkinp; mu/ real estate company to a sip.n(ficant .financial 

sercices entity ll'ith a .$13 hillion sarinp.s hank. a 

.$22 hi Ilion 1110rtp;age serricinp; poqfi>lio wu/ w1 inswwwe 

agen<:,. that is one <d' the larp.est in Te.rns. 

UUfimf.'i al>ility lo dere/01> dedirnted. talented em1>loyees is 

also a /J<Lrt <d' his leg([(:\·. lie encoump.ed personal 

dere/opment <?/. <'lll/>loyees and />r<>cided su1>1><>rl and 

i11struction. Through his <·ommitnwnt to Tem1>le-lnlwu(s 

success and his unzcal'ering intep.Tity. he set w1 e.rnmple .fi>r 

all the e1n1>loyees <?/'the com1><111y to .fi>llozr. 

He ll'ill miss C/Ufim/. hut his lep.wy 1Cill rnntinue to Iii'<' on 

zcith the COlll/Hllly. lie zrish C/Ufim/ um/ his.fi1111i~,- the best. 

Clifford J. Grum retired from 
the office of chairman and 
chief executive officer of 
Temple-Inland Inc. on 
January 1, 2000. We will 
always be grateful for his 
leadership and friendship. 
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To Our Shareholders: 

During 1999, we made significant progress for 
Temple-Inland shareholders as earnings improved 
substantially over 1998, and we continued 
positioning the company for the future. 

Income from continuing operations was $191 million, or $3.43 per 
diluted share, more than double 1998 income from continuing operations of 
$88 million, or $1.59 per diluted share. Revenues from continuing operations for 
1999 were $3.7 billion, up 12 percent compared with 1998 continuing revenues 
of $3.3 billion. 

We continued our focus on improving return on investment (ROI). We view 
ROI as the key measurement of our financial performance because it focuses on 
earnings and the efficient use of capital. Employee compensation is tied to ROI with 
a significant portion of total compensation at risk if return targets are not met. 

Strategic Initiatives Taken 

2 

Our actions in 1999 to position this company for the future included: 

• Selling the bleached paperboard operation in Evadale, Texas, to 
Westvaco Corporation. This transaction allows the paper group to focus 
on corrugated packaging. 

• Converting the Newport, Indiana, mill from the production of 
corrugating medium to a joint-venture facility that will manufacture 
lightweight gypsum facing paper. This project, which should be 
completed in 2000, will not only improve ROI , but also ultimately 
eliminate 285 ,000 tons of containerboard capacity. 

• Continuing to implement our Mplus 50 profit enhancement initiative, 
the goal of which is to improve the paper group's ROI. 

• Divesting a box plant in Argentina that was not able to generate 
satisfactory returns. 

• Installing a new information system to improve the paper group's 
performance to the customer and facilitate capturing the benefits of 
e-commerce. This project was initiated in 1999 and should be 
completed in 2001. 

• Renovating the Diboll , Texas, sawmill to convert smaller logs to lumber 
more efficiently. We are also constructing a new sawmill in Pineland, 
Texas, which should be completed in 2001 . Each of our sawmills has 
now been modernized and utilizes new generation technology. 

• Executing a 20-year lease to operate a particleboard facility and medium 
density fiberboard (MDF) facility in Mt. Jewett, Pennsylvania, which will 
allow us to continue to meet increasing demand and serve new markets. 

• Constructing, through a joint venture, a new gypsum wallboard plant in 
Cumberland City, Tennessee, that uses synthetic gypsum as its raw 
material. This facility will have a unique cost structure and a 
competitive market advantage due to location. 

• Broadening financial services geographically through the acquisition of 
HF Bancorp, Inc., with offices in the Southern California markets of Palm 
Springs, Riverside County and northern San Diego County. These areas 
have a high percentage of customers who value our "high touch" service. 

• Diversifying financial services by acquiring an asset-based lending 
operation, an industrial and commercial equipment leasing and finance 
company, and an interest in a regional investment bank. 

Key Profit Drher~ 

In addition to the specific actions outlined above, three key drivers will 
improve our level of profitability. 

The first is focusing on customer needs. We are committed to partnering 
with customers to develop solutions, realize the full potential of opportunities 
and improve profitability. 

The second is providing quality products. Customers tell us that they rely 
on the consistency and quality of our products. We will continue to anticipate 
and exceed customer requirements for quality and service. 

The third key driver is continuing to focus on the long-term growth and 
viability of our forests. These timberlands represent not only a strategic and 
valuable asset, but also a significant social and environmental responsibility. 

Outlook i~ Promi~ing 

The outlook for 2000 and beyond appears promising. Markets in the 
United States continue to grow and many overseas markets are improving as well. 

Market conditions for corrugated packaging began improving early 
in 1999 and gained momentum through the year, allowing our paper group 
to implement two price increases. Another price increase for linerboard 
was announced for February 2000. Our paper group's growth in box 
shipments in 1999 was approximately 5 percent, compared with industry 
growth of 2.4 percent. More importantly, most of our growth was in 

higher-value accounts. 
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Looking forward, very low rates of new containerboard capacity are 
anticipated, and growth in demand currently exceeds growth in supply. As 
e-commerce develops, the fulfillment and shipment of products will be of critical 
importance. This could steepen the demand growth curve for boxes. These 
factors, coupled with incremental improvements from our Mplus 50 profit 
enhancement initiative, should result in improved paper group earnings. 

Our building products group capitalized on a strong new home 
construction and remodeling market to produce record earnings in 1999. 
Although interest rates are higher and projections are for a slowdown in housing 
starts, our diversified line of products, coupled with the anticipated contribution 
from new facilities and operations that were affec ted by start-up costs in 1999, 
should result in another good year for building products in 2000. 

Our financial services group's earnings were down slightly from l 998's 
record level. As borrowers refinanced to low fixed-rate alternatives, due to 
declining interest rates in late 1998 and early 1999, our bank experienced run­
off in its single-family, adjustable-rate mortgage portfolio. Fortunately, the bank 
was able to increase the volume of other types of loans and actually increased 
the total loan portfolio by $1.2 billion in 1999. 

For 2000 , the new loans added last year provide further geographic and 
product diversification and the opportunity for improved earnings. Moreover, 
with rising interest rates, the bank should have the opportunity to again add 
single-family, adjustable-rate mortgages to the portfolio. 

Positioned for the Future 

We took major steps in 1999 to position our company for the future. We 
now intend to capitalize on each of our markets by bringing the greatest value to 
our customers through quality products and high levels of service. 

We will actively look for opportunities to grow each of our businesses, 
but only if such growth will improve earnings and meet or exceed targeted 
ROI requirements. 

In November, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 
6 million shares of Temple-Inland common stock. We repurchased 1.65 million 
shares in the fourth quarter of 1999 and another 800,000 shares in January 2000. 

Preceding this letter is a well-deserved tribute to Clifford Grum. I would 
personally like to thank Clifford for his efforts and contributions to our company. 

I would also like to thank our employees for their dedication and 
commitment to providing quality products and service to our customers. Their 
efforts are key to successful implementation of our strategy to improve ROI and 
build value for our shareholders. 

Finally, thank you to our shareholders for your investment in our 
company. We look forward to the year 2000. 

Sincerely, 

~M)ts.~ 
Kenneth M. Jastrow, II 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

January 30, 2000 
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With Commitment and Determination. 

Committed to our goals and determined to succeed. 
This is the spirit of Temple-Inland. 

See that spirit in our people. 
Learn how it reflects on our customers, on their customers and on the communities where we do business. 

Our commitment to clearly defined goals and carefully conceived strategies is well founded in our culture. 
We are confident we will succeed based on the dedication of our employees, 

our competitive manufacturing capability and an integral knowledge of our markets. 

Copied from an original at The History Center, Diboll, Texas.     www.TheHistoryCenterOnline.com     1993:001



Through commitment and determination, we will build on the strength of our core businesses -
and capitalize on the promise of emerging technologies. 

Looking ahead, 
we search for even better ways to meet our commitments to our customers, our shareholders, 

our employees and our communities. 

We are Temple-Inland. And these are our stories. 
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Focusing on custoiller needs. 

We prefer to build relationships~ 

not just products. 

Our focus is on product quality and on customer service. 

To us, service goes beyond delivery. 

It means being a partner with our customers. 

Helping them anticipate and avoid problems. 

Working together to realize the full potential of opportunities. 

We take real pride in making a customer happy and more profitable. 

And we're committed to finding even better ways to do it again and again. 
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In today's highly competitive business environment, packaging has become a critical component to the long-term success 
of the customers of Temple-Inland's paper group (Inland). Designing corrugated packaging that delivers both strength and 
environmental solutions, moving products off the shelf with innovative merchandising solutions and anticipating changing 
shipping demands created by e-commerce are just some of the ways Inland delivers customer satisfaction. 

With a new and highly focused, market-driven philosophy, Inland made major progress toward becoming more of an 
integrated partner with its customers. The relationships es tablished with customers do not occur from random sourcing or 
solely on price quotations; they result from becoming integrated into customers' overall business processes and delivering 
profitable solutions. 

Inland works hard to learn the demands and nuances of customers' businesses and - just as important - the needs of 
customers' customers. Through its trademarked ScoreZonen1 research and merchandising techniques, Inland provides 
customers with new strategies and tools to win consumer attention at the crucial point of sale. 

In recent years, the company has been able to leverage strong relationships with customers to 
sell more non-traditional , value-added services. Inland is one of the few packaging suppliers that 
can deliver a full continuum of services - including high-end, six-color litho-laminate printing; 
total fulfillment capabilities; and audits to increase the productivity of customers' corrugated 
packaging lines. Customers see improved quality, productivity and sales , while Inland gains 
stronger relationships and further market penetration. 

For example, when Wal-Mart began demanding that suppliers deliver corrugated package 
designs that allow easy setup to reduce the labor required to stock shelves, Inland stepped up to 
the challenge. Working closely with S.C. Johnson & Sons, Inland applied a patented tear-tape 
design that served Wal-Mart's setup requirements and still offered enhanced shelf appeal. This 
resulted in better margins for the retailer, a gain in market share for S.C. Johnson & Sons in 
both the United States and Canada, and improved returns for Inland. 

A willingness to commit capital on behalf of customers is another way Inland gains 
value-added contracts and sales. In the east-central region of Pennsylvania, Inland built a 
specialty packaging plant to serve a distinct group of agricultural growers. The new, centrally 
located facility provides advance setups, custom printing and just-in-time delivery. As a result, 
Inland's market position in this area has grown to approximately 80 percent. In addition, the 
company is earning an excellent return on the capital invested. 

·This s1wciul Hll(/ireiser 111<1µ11um-si::e f)()l//e 

1rus int/H>rlant 1101 on~,- henwse it 1rus ([ key 

1 n ff Io demo/1.'i/ m I e t 11 lwuser-Husc/1 ·s 

commitnwnl lo {/ll(i/ity. hut it lwl1wd mise the 

so1>histin11ion cue .fi>r the Hw/ireiser hmll<I. He 

chose /11/([nd lwrnuse <f their.fiil/-serrice 

<"<1/)(Jhilities u11</ the J>r<?f('ssio11ulis111 they h([l'<' 

sho1rn us orer the H'W-S. /11/wul c/e([r/\· lw/ieres . . 

in (//1<1/ity. It shotc.'i in their JWOJ>le. their 

.fiwilitie'i ([fld the.fin([/ out1>ul <f tlw product 

they de/il'er. The 111arki11µ <f the 1w1r 

mi//e1111i11m IC([.'i ([ 011n'-ifl-([-fU<'ti11w erenl. 

<111</ /11/wu/ /l('/f>ed de/il'er u 011e<'-i11-u-/(/('time 

1>ucka.!.!.·<' .fi>r the ·t\ ing <f Heers.· ·· 

John Marola , vice pres idenL, retai l creaLive services, An heuser- Busch, l nc., 
SL. Louis, Missouri , 

I nland customer 

In an effort to provide even better service to customers, Inland reorganized 30 converting plants into eight distinct 
business units, or districts, in 1999. The plants within each district now operate in tandem , creating synergies from 
combined sales and marketing expertise to satisfy the demand and value characteristics of each customer, thereby 
providing better and more timely solutions. 
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~ ·lE ""Our plan(s biggest customer is I fl~--. ~;~ 
1merinm Woodmark. one of the 

nation ~s largest kitchen cabinet i/2 4·9X97 
manz{fizcturers. 1T'e 'z:e been their 

predominant supplier and ... ~~-
partner for near(v JO years. and 1 

· ~ 
the quality of our particleboard 

is critical to their success. He tn-

to anticipate their erer:\' 1zeed. 

but they 're also a great customer 

because they gice us honest and 

timely feedback. That\ the lC<LY . . . 

it ~"i supposed to u·orh:. 1merican 

Jl)oodmarh: expects a consistent 

hoard. delicered just in time. 

that meets or exceeds their 

e.\pectations - and they ll'(lTlt 

that same board next LCeeh:." 

Steve Dwyer , Templ e_ 
tec ltnical di rector, particleboard plant 

T ho mson, Georgia 

I,., 
./(. 

4·9X9? 

12 

~·9X97 

12 

112 49X97 

9·9X 97 

~·9X97 
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To Temple-Inland's building products group (Temple), customer focus is about developing relabonships and loyalties 
that securely tie the company to its customers. It is the corners tone of Temple's success and reputation. 

The primary tool Temple uses to deliver on its promises and enhance relationships is its proprietary, real-time 
customer interface system , known as Order to Cash. Part technology and part organization, Order to Cash addresses 
every aspect of the value chain - from developing and manufacturing new products to selling, delivering and receiving 
payment for the products. Order to Cash unites Temple's people, products and processes to put the customer first in 
every way possible. Customers know they can expect consistently high-quality products in a predictable manner. If a 
problem arises, Temple's commitment to customers is that they will receive prompt, satisfactory resolution. 

Over the past decade, user and distribution channels have changed the market dynamics wi thin the building 
products sector. Temple continuously monitors the complexities of all its diverse markets - industrial , commercial and 
retail. By anticipating the direction of markets, Temple can have the right people and technology in place to serve each 
customer group. 

Technology continues to provide opportunitles for Temple to better serve customers. Temple is at the forefront of using 
the Internet as an important marketing tool and making customer data interactive. For Temple, however, e-business is just 
one of many customer-support tools, not a substitute for personal responsiveness and relationship building. 

Temple's forest group also plays an important role in delivering value to customers. Using sophisticated software tools 
and planning systems, Temple made major strides during the year to fine-tune its ability to ensure the right tree goes to 
the right mill to produce products based on specific customer needs. The focus is on adding value by targeting customer 
segments that require specific quality products that yield higher, sustainable margins for Temple. Efficient production of 
those products, in turn, requires close coordination between raw material supply, manufacturing and delivery. 

Copied from an original at The History Center, Diboll, Texas.     www.TheHistoryCenterOnline.com     1993:001



I:.? 

1: I \ \ \ ( \ L :-' I. I { \ I I : I·: ;--; 

--uy <·11stomers are the mediwn and far!.!.<' 

lwmehuilders. 111w1y <?/. 1chich 01wmte 

nationa/~,-, /11 this ho<J111i11g hou-;inµ 

111ar/1·e1. residential areas <Jr<' dere!o1wd 

f/Uick~,- to Ill<'<'/ µ1mcing de111<111d. and 

lwilders need I<> k1101c lh<T l1<1re the 

.fin<lnci<ll h<lcking lo sei::,e the <>/>/><>rlunities. 

It Ctwmnty. tee />ride nurse/res 011 [wing 

e.rlreme~,- res1w11si1 <'. l/011whuildi11g is <l 

co1111>le.r h11siness. with 111<111y rariuhles 

tlwt can cause del<ffs. Our <·ustomer-; don ·1 

need more ohst<lcles. and !hut's zchere our 

serrice comes in. Our /WO/>I<' hare 

w·twJ/ e.r1wrie11ce in the lwil<ling i11dust1y 

and can delirer tre111<'11dous uJ/ue lo 

our customer-;. II e·re 1><irlners in the 

!.!.mtcth and Sllff<'ss <f the-;e huilders. ·· 

Temple-Inland's financial services group (Financial Services) has utilized a 
common strategy of building strong customer relationships in all four of its 
lines of business - consumer banking, mortgage banking, real estate and 
insurance brokerage. Focusing on customer needs is a key to success in each 
of these businesses. 

During 1999, Financial Services' flagship institution, Guaranty Federal Bank 
(Guaranty), undertook a major market research initiative that confirmed that 
a significant portion of customers value personal attention and "high touch" 
service. Therefore, rather than compete with large national banks on price, 
Guaranty has elected to leverage an already established culture of catering to 
customers who value this level of personal service and represent the largest 
segment of financial services dollars in the market today. Even though "high 
touch" service is the focus , emerging technologies are a very important tool in 
Guaranty providing personal service to customers. 

Wendel l Gamble , Cuara nly, 
ass isLanL vice presid ent, resid enLi al constructi o11 lending, 

Dall as, Texas 

Guaranty has established a national reputation as a lender of choice, 
particularly to the real estate and mortgage industries. This reputation is 
anchored in a long-term commitment to these businesses on the part of 

experienced loan officers who believe that sound business fundamentals and strong relationships 
between banker and client are the keys to mutual success. 

The same principles of relationship banking are also applied to the commercial side of Guaranty's 
lending business. Small and medium-size companies often need quick approval on loan requests. 
Guaranty's community business bankers can deliver a fast response because decisions are made 
locally. Strong banker-client relationships are also important, because many sma11-business owners 
do not have sufficient resources to meet all their business requirements. Regardless of what these 
businesses need - capital, cash management assistan ce, insurance or employee benefit programs -
Guaranty's value lies in the ability to deliver comprehensive services and solutions. 

The focus on customer relationships is also a key driver for Financial Services' other three 
businesses - mortgage banking, real estate and insurance brokerage. Although each of Lhese 
businesses has a different set of customers with various types of needs, success is based on 
developing relationships that bring value to every customer. 
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Providing quality products. 

In business, quality is never static. 

Someone is always raising the bar. 

We don't wait for that "someone" to be the customer, 

or the competition. 

We raise it ourselves . 

We ask our customers to define quality in their own terms. 

Meeting or exceeding their requirements is important -

but we're not content with the minimum standards. 

It doesn 't matter if it's products, services, processes or ideas. 

The highest level of quality is our benchmark. 

We believe quality is what our customers want, and we expect it of ourselves. 
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Quality goes beyond consistent grade linerboard and the structural integrity of the container. From concept and 
design to delivery and recycling, the quality of Inland's product results from its total-solutions approach. This is 
what differentiates Inland from its competitors and benefits its customers. 

To help take its quality standards to the next level, Inland is committed to delivering consistent quality from 
every plant, mill and office. As such , the company launched a new initiative called Inland Quality Process 9000 
or, simply, IQP 9000. This fully integrated business management system is based on the ISO 9000 concep t, but 
goes further by seeking to establish customer-focused, bes t-operating processes. 

Already recognized by major national customers , such as Anheuser-Busch , Inc., The Minute Maid Company 
and Philip Morris Companies Inc., IQP 9000 goes beyond traditional quality-assurance systems to address 
organizational processes, including production, customer service, product delivery, invoicing and more. 

This commitment to quality and innovative packaging solutions allows Inland to command a growing share of 
the agricultural industry in Mexico. Knowing that a one-size-fits-all container won't work when handling delicate 
fruits and vegetables, Inland works closely with each of the various growers to identify specific requirements for 
safe shipping. The result is less damage and waste for the growers, helping to increase profit margins. 

·-ro me. maintaining the hip.hes! quality stwulanls is simJJ/e: I disrnss the 

custonzer·s requirements zcith the people zcho run our paper rnachines and 

the corrugator operators at the packaging plwzts. Together. tu' decelop 

solutions. Ocer the years. I hace met zcith customers and gained a strong 

understanding qf' their needs. I/acing !wen al this mill since the doors 

opened 15 years ago. I hare seen our quality go .fi-orn good lo the !>est in the 

industry. Our customers deserce the !>est and tha(s 1dzat they get.·· 

During 1999, Inland's consumer packaging business continued to build a 
reputation as the nation's premier supplier of litho-laminate, enhanced 
post-print and point-of-purchase displays - from the standpoint of both 
quality and creativity. 

All of Inland's specialty products operations are supported by the 
Graphics Resource Center, recognized as one of the best preprint facilities 
in the United States. Serving as headquarters for the company's research, 
design and specialty printing staffs, the Graphics Resource Center in 1999 
added an innovative retail research laboratory equipped with actual store 
fixtures , shelving and signage. The facility allows Inland to thoroughly test 

Marvin Fry, Inland , 
qualily lab Lechnician , co rrla incrboard mill , 

Onta ri o, Californ ia 

new merchandising concepts for specific retail environments, including 
club stores, grocery stores, mass merchandise outlets and other configurations, thereby delivering to the 
customer a more efficient and targeted way to achieve sales goals. 

Inland is regularly named supplier of the year by various customers who see the bottom line impact of 
breakthrough crea tive concepts for packaging and display systems. Inland's commitment to high levels of 
quality and innovation can also be gauged by the significant number of awards it receives from top industry 
associations. In 1999, for example, the company won more than 15 top honors from such groups as the 
Point of Purchase Advertising Institute, the Paper and Packaging Council , POP Times magazine and the 
Flexographic Technical Association, among others. 
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Quality has long been a hallmark of Temple's diverse line of building products. For people who depend 
on the highest quality materials - professional contractors and do-it-yourself remodelers alike - Temple 
products set the standard for performance, ease of use and fini shed quality. 

One of the key components of Temple's value-chain system is bringing customers into its manufacturing 
facilities to speak directly with plant employees. The overriding message that continuously comes through 
during these meetings is that the company's key competitive advantages, as defined by customers, are 
consistency, predictability and reliability. In fact , a leading building-supply distributor in Texas told Temple 
employees that when he purchases lumber from other suppliers to meet high demands, he uses Temple 
material to set the standard. 

In addition to lumber, Temple is well-positioned in particleboard, medium density fiberboard (MDF), 
gypsum wallboard, fiber-cement siding and fiberboard. Building contractors count on the consistent 
quality Temple offers across all product lines. As a result, the company was able to 
benefit from the continued strong housing starts during 1999, as well as the 
growing home repair and remodeling market. .. <)uulity is purl <f uur culture. UJI(/ ll'e.firlll~\· lwli<T<' in the fJr<>duc! ..... II'<' sell. 

Temple is also meeting the growing demands of the retail market by establishing 
itself as a preferred provider with such customers as The Home Depot and Lowe's -
companies that require high levels of service. As consumer purchasing behaviors 
continue to become more sophisticated, the company is partnering with retailers to 
incorporate in-store marketing strategies and point-of-purchase displays that 
highlight the features and benefits of its products. 

II<' ..... illl/J~\· dun ·t sell unything le.'" thun the l>e.-..t. I ·'fW<iuli:e in delirerin!..!. 

ct1.\t()Jni::ed s1wcial onlers.fiJr lllY custonwrs. ull<I Ten11Jf<'." t>mducts ure 

<'l>J1.....,iste111~,. reliul>/e. There ure re1:,·.fi 11c returns 1rhen Olli"< uslumers le<Jn' 

the store ll'ith Ten11Jfe"." n1u/eriuk I uctua/~,. e1~joy selling the rnlll/HlllY"' 

.filwr-c<'lll<'llt /Jrodu< ts l>ecuuse lite /H'1:fi>rnu111ce.fi'utures <Jre /w([(/s <Ji><>l'<' 

COlll/Wlilire 1nm/11c/s. In .file!. (111 inslulling ii 011 111y Oll'll ltous<'. ·· 

The furniture and kitchen cabinet industries continue to grow, and Temple is 
positioned to capitalize on the resulting increased demand for composite wood 
products. The company's investment in recent years to upgrade three particleboard 
plants and to construct a world-class facility in Hope, Arkansas, has begun to pay off. These efforts have 
doubled the company's particleboard capacity since 1997, while also dramatically improving product 
quality. Today, Temple is recognized for the superior surface quality and performance of its particleboard. 

Many of the group's particleboard customers are also employing MDF in their products. Demand for this 
product is growing rapidly. MDF is used primarily for applications in laminate flooring, architectural trim 
and store fixtures. Leveraging its reputation for consistent quality and offering the industry's most 
advanced continuous-press capabilities, Temple is the largest North American producer of MDF. 

Bill Buell , special services manager and d istri c t tra i11 r r, 
T lie Uome Depot, sto re # 6503 , Da ll as, Texas, 

Temple customer 
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Financial Services has chosen to develop a high level of expertise in certain core businesses and products, rather 
than trying to be all things to all people. 

As a nationally recognized lender, Guaranty has committed more than $16 billion since 1991 to the commercial 
and residential real estate construction industry. Additionally, the bank is one of the largest mortgage warehouse 
lenders and a major investor in single-family, adjustable-rate mortgages. 

Guaranty has also taken additional steps to strengthen its loan offerings, especially second-lien mortgage products, 
home-improvement loans, home-equity loans and lines of credit. Automobile and education lending activities also 
increased during the year. Guaranty significantly expanded its lending activities to middle-market companies during 
the year, achieving a record $1 billion in loans outstanding. 

On the retail side, Guaranty unveiled a broader array of products and convenient delivery options in 1999, 
including new high-yield money market and checking accounts, bill paying by telephone and the Visa® Check Card. 
As a result of these initiatives, Guaranty's deposits grew by 10 percent during the year. 

More emphasis was also placed on offering a full 
range of products and services wherever bank 
customers do business. For example, the bank 
expanded its branches into supermarkets to enhance 
customer convenience. Additionally, consumer loans 
are offered in strategically selected bank branches, 
and inves tment products are available through the 
assistance of professionally licensed representatives. 

··ity hu .... hund and I lice in Pul111 ,'i't>rinp:sf(Jr uhoul ll<l(f/he year. und IU' oripinul(, · 

chose our hwzk l>ecuuse <?/'its location. I! °.Ii cet~v concenienl lo 1chere ice like I<> 

shop U!l(f eu/. and lh<L(s i111porlunt. ff hen Guumnly 1wrcll<lsed !he lwnk. ice sl<Lyed 

!here hecause zce loce !he /WO/>le <L!l(f /he way lhey"re <Llzcuys so courteous and 

1rnlch out .fi>r us. They ll<lce }us/ !he kind <?f'sercices zce need. ,Ind !he hrwwh 

mwl<lp.·er ul1cays co11ws ou/ lo suy hello or to inl'ile us info his <?ffice lo chul. }ou 

Temple-Inland Mortgage Corporation , the group's 
mortgage banking operation , is one of the nation's 
largest lenders to single-family home buyers with 

knozc. suyinµ· hello like t><'OJ>le do /Chen people kno1c ewh other.·· 

customers in every state. Loan production totaled $3 .7 billion in 1999 and the company's $22 billion loan servicing 
portfolio includes approximately 240,000 customers. Lumbermen 's Investment Corporation, the group's real estate 
company, focuses on single-family real estate development. 

Timberline Insurance Managers Inc. , Financial Services' insurance brokerage operation , offers a comprehensive 
range of financial products and services, including personal and commerd al lines of protection, annuities, life and 
health insurance, and risk advisory services. Timberline is one of the largest insurance agencies in Texas, which 
allows for a large customer base to be served with a full complement of products at competitive rates. Timberline is 
well positioned to increase its presence in Texas and expand into other markets, especially California. 

Eloise McGuire , 
Palm Spri ngs. Californ ia. 

Guara nty customer 
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Positioning for the future. 

At Temple-Inland, 

we are positioning ourselves with a view toward the future. 

\\(' Ji..,.ten H'r~ do!-iel~ to our ('ll"'itonwr..;. 

We continuously learn about their needs and definition of success. 

\\e de\elop ~omuL ~trat(•µ,fr gnm th initiathe!-i to meet tho~e JH"ed~. 

And implement those plans in the most efficient manner possible. 

Success is m easured by the value we deliver to our cu stomers, shareholders and employees. 
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P A P E H 

During 1999, Inland continued implementing the single mos t expansive margin-improvement program in the 
company's 75-year history. The primary goal is to create a distinctly market-driven culture in which the 
customer's demand for value and innovation determines the right products, operating levels and capital 
investments necessary to exceed the targeted return on inves tment. 

As part of this program, Inland eliminated approximately 250 positions. Compensation is now aligned with 
profitability at each level of the value chain, rather than tonnage produced or sold. 

Inland also successfully upgraded its customer base in 1999. In 1998, Inland made difficult decisions regarding 
pricing to some long-standing customers that resulted in the elimination of certain low-margin accounts. Because 
it exited accounts faster than they could be replaced, Inland's volume in 1998 trailed the industry. The trend was 
reversed in 1999, and volumes exceeded the industry average. More importantly, the increase was predominantly 
in higher-value accounts. 

The market-driven culture applies to the containerboard mills as well as the corrugated packaging plants. It 
requires the mills to operate as a coordinated system. The mills can no longer simply run at full capacity and push 
containerboard to Inland's corrugated container plants. Rather, the box plants now order containerboard as needed 
to meet market demand. This makes the mill system responsible to the market through its primary customer, 
Inland's corrugated container plants, as well as other domestic and international users of containerboard. 

A joint venture with Caraustar Industries, Inc., is a prime example of the company's efforts to enhance and balance 
its asset base. In May, the company announced it would convert its containerboard mill in Newport, Indiana, to 
produce a lightweight gypsum facing paper. When completed in 2000, the project will increase the company's 
integration levels and diversify its product line - important steps in further improving return on investment. 

Installing a new company information system was identified as a key enabler to the margin improvement 
program and a requirement for improving performance to the customer. Called Integrated Package and Point 
Solutions, or IPPS, this effort includes configuring new processes, installing a new technical infrastructure and 
software, and training users. IPPS will provide a foundation for better managing the total supply chain and for 
capturing the benefits of e-commerce. In effec t, IPPS represents an unprecedented opportunity to streamline and 
upgrade the company's business processes, procedures and systems - each element aimed at creating and 
sustaining true economic value for all stakeholders. 

With an increased focus on the core corruga ted packaging operations, Temple-Inland sold its bleached 
paperboard business to Wes tvaco Corporation during the fourth quarter. 1999 was a miles tone year of positioning 
for Inland, as the company continues to improve earning power through aggressive efforts focused on organization 
efficiency and effectiveness, operations cost improvement and revenue enhancement. 
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Temple has built a solid foundation on which it continues to leverage and add to 
the overall company's return to shareholders. It is positioned with a combination of 
broad product diversity, efficient plants and key geographic locations. 

The company's new joint-venture gypsum 
wallboard plant in Cumberland City, Tennessee, is a 
good example of Temple's strategic focus on 
positioning itself for the long term. The raw 
material used to produce the wallboard is a low-cost, 
synthetic gypsum produced as a by-product of a 
Tennessee Valley Authority electric-utility plant 

·-rce spenl my entire career huilding large mwudizcturinµ: planls. Bui !his is llw.firsl lime 

I zcould hecome the day-to-day plant numager once it 1n1s compleled. I persona/f, · 1cw11ed 

lo ensure ii Leas zcorld class and. zcilh mwwgernen(s support. I lwliece zn~ ·ce met our 

goals. fl is lruf,· a slmlep-ic.fi1cility zcith slule-qrthe-arl processes. Ind our geographic 

locution p.hes us a COlllJ>el iii ce cost adnmtage. Ue ·re lilera/fy rw\l door lo our 1wc 

adjacent to the gypsum wallboard facility. 
material source. and 1n>re close to f(1s1-p:ro1cing markets. I (s a zcinn ing comhinal ion.·· 

Furthermore, the p lant's location will help the company better serve the fast-growing 
construction markets in the eastern half of the United States. 

Lumber remains Temple's largest product segment, and the company has now 
completed renova tions to all of its existing sawmills. The construction of a new 
sawmill in Pinelan d, Texas, will be completed in 2001. The goal is to enable these 
operations to convert smaller logs, thereby increasing the percentage of fiber that can 
be used as lumber rather than by-product chips. With these changes, Temple has one 
of the most efficien t, low-cost sawmill sys tems in the United States. 

Temple also con tinues to expand its composite wood products to serve the growing 
home construction , repair and remodeling, and furniture markets. In late 1999, 
Temple entered into a 20-year lease to operate a particleboard facility and an MDF 
facility in Mt. Jewett, Pennsylvania. This acquisition raises Temple's North American 
market share in MlDF to approximately 20 percent, and approximately 12 percent in 
particleboard. More importantly, these facilities allow Temple to continue meeting 
customers' increasing demand for particleboard and MDF and to serve new markets. 

Ri c k Daugherty, 
pla nL manager, syntheli c gypsum wa llboa rd plant, 

Cumberl and Cily, Tennessee 
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One of Financial Services' key strengths is the diversity of its assets. During 1999 , Financial 
Services pursued an aggressive diversification strategy, making it less dependent on the cyclical 
nuances of any particular industry or region. 

Financial Services took a major step fonvard in its diversification strategy by making a number 
of acquisitions. First, Guaranty acquired the asset-based lending operations of Fidelity Funding 
Financial Group, Inc., which provides corporate customers with lines of credit, term loans and other 
financing secured by account receivables, inventories and equipment. It also acquired an interest in 
Hoak Breedlove Wesneski & Co. , a regional investment bank that specializes in technology and 
telecommunications. Finally, Guaranty has entered into an agreement to purchase American 
Finance Group , Inc., an industrial and commercial equipment leasing and financing company. 

Furthering one of its key strategies to broaden geographically, Guaranty successfully integrated its 
acquisition of HF Bancorp, Inc. with branches in the Southern California markets of Palm Springs, 
Riverside County and northern San Diego County. 

The bank's commercial and residential lending division continued to expand activities in Texas, 
California, the Southeast , the Northwest and in more than 50 major metropolitan areas from coast 
to coast , achieving record production. 

Financial Services has historically provided a steady stream of earnings for Temple-Inland to 
offset the earnings volatility from paper and building products. By further diversifying its assets in 
1999, Financial Services is positioned to continue providing increased earnings in the future. 
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Contributing to the quality of life 
for employees and communities. 

Financial performance and returns are important. 

But tht"'re are otlwr kind~ of return~~ 

a8 '\ell. 

Returning the trust placed in us with responsible forest management. 

Returning something to the communities where we operate. 

Returning something is a wise investment. 

ICs also the right thing to do. 

We believe that by doing the right thing, 

the returns will follow. 

Copied from an original at The History Center, Diboll, Texas.     www.TheHistoryCenterOnline.com     1993:001



I 

' j,1 

~ 
~ 
·11 
'.Lt: 
". 

~~ 

~{ 

A 
~ 

:t2 

I·· () H !-: ~ T ~ T I·: \\ \ I{ I l :-- 11 I I> 

Temple-Inland's approximately 2.2 million acres of timberland in Texas, Louisiana, Georgia and Alabama represent a 
strategic and valuable source of raw material for its paper and building products operations. It also represents a significant 
social responsibility - a responsibility the company takes very seriously. 

The company carefully manages its forests as a sustainable resource. Forest management decisions are made with 
consideration to the total forest environment, including wildlife, biodiversity, water quality and aesthetic issues. In 1995, the 
company established a comprehensive policy to preserve and enhance the sustainability of its forests. This policy sets company 
standards to help ensure a balance among ecology, economy and sustainable forestry. 

As part of Temple-Inland's overall forest strategy, every acre is assigned a management prescription based on an individual 
site's most beneficial use and intrinsic qualities . Today, approximately 75 percent of the company's land is targeted for 
high-yield fiber production , while the remainder is managed as natural stands. 

··1 prohab(Y /wee one <d' the most 

interesting jobs in the comrHmy. I 1cork 

right beside other special use .foresters to 

make <~[feel ire long-term m<magement 

decisions. 1~Y spec{fic responsibililies are 

related lo Tenzple-lnlmurs comrnitmenl to 

the mos/ sensitice aspPCts qf' the fi>res/s -

protecting 1cildl(fe habitats and 

ensuring Lhe quality <d. LCaler resources and 

the aesthetics qf the .fbrests. ·· 

Stan Cook, Tem ple- In la nd Fores t, 
special use fo res l ma nager, 

Diboll , Texas 

During the 1998-99 planting season, 49,000 acres were carefully selected and reforested with 
36 million genetically improved pine seedlings. The seedlings grew 30 percent taller on average 
than seedlings planted in previous years. Seedling survival also increased by approximately 
8 percent from historic levels. These results are due to new company innovations, technology 
and applied research , which will continue to increase the amount of fiber delivered to the 
company's mills annually. 

As part of its efforts to help protect endangered species, the company signed an agreement in 
1999 with the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department and the Texas Fores t Service to es tablish a 
5,000-acre Habitat Management Area for the red-cockaded woodpecker. The Habitat Management 
Area is located in the central region of the company's East Texas forests, and foresters are working 
to establish at least 14 groups of these birds, which are on the Federal Endangered Species List. 

In recent years, there has been much discussion about how the forest industry can ensure that 
wood and paper products originate from well-managed forests, while at the same time conserving 
the Earth's more sensitive and diverse forest types. Because the majority of Temple-Inland's fiber 
base is derived from southern pine plantation resources, the company is not in the center of the 
debate surrounding old-growth fores ts, tropical forests and temperate rainforests. 

Nevertheless, the company believes in communicating its high standards of forest management and fully expects to be held 
accountable by both retailers and the general public. During 1999, the company began exploring the options of contracting 
with leading assessment firms to conduct an independent verification of its forest practices, as well as to assess the company's 
compliance with the environmental management systems of the International Standards Organization. 
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.. / l>elonµ: lo the Scholastic Basl1·etl>all prop:ranz thal the 

JOO Wack lien µ:roup does at my school. 1 (s great. I joined 

at .first just lwrnuse I Hwlled to play lwsketl>all. Bui then I 

.fhuml out !hut they leach us June to approach /(/(> - like 

how to look .W)!Jle/)(u/y in the en> and shake lumds lil1·e a . . 

man. , Ind IC<' 1cin exlru points .fiJr our class 1cork and 

attendance and conducl. The coaches are great. too. I kno1c 

!hey ·11 alirnys he there .fi>r nw .!<Jr the rest <?f' my l(/(1
• •• 

SLe 11hen Carbone, 5th grad e r. P.S. 105, 
I nd ianapolis. Tnd ia11 a 

Th e Scholnslic Baskeiball program is sponsored in pnrl b_,. a Lm de1:<;hip Cran / .fi"om The /11/a11d Founda1io11 

:) I 

( l I{ I) ( l H \ I' I I 'I I /, I \ ..., II I I> 

Temple-Inland's business groups conduct a diverse range of philanthropic programs, including 
charitable contributions and grants, extensive volunteer activities and donations of equipment, 
products and in-kind services. However, there is one overriding direction to the various outreach 
efforts. The majority of Temple-Inland's charitable giving is centered on the communities in 
which the company's employees live and work. 

The company has a particularly well-known and regarded program that encourages academic 
excellence among high school students. Each year, it gives a $1,000 award to the top two 
graduating seniors from more than 550 schools in communities across the country where 
Temple-Inland has operations. 

In addition , Inland is progressive in supporting elementary schools in the many communities in 
which it operates. Through its Partners in Education program, Inland not only contributes funds for 
capital and curriculum improvements at more than 40 schools throughout the country, it establishes 
long-term and productive relationships with students and teachers. 

Financial Services' commitment to the economic development of the communities it serves is a 
deeply rooted tradition and goes well beyond its extensive 
Community Reinvestment Act program. Many of the group's 
community reinvestment efforts are aimed at supporting home 
ownership as a foundation to strong, vibrant neighborhoods. The 
programs are diverse and far ranging, including offering affordable 
mortgage products to low- and moderate-income families 
participating in FHA, VA and Fannie Mae lending programs; 
commercial lending for construction of affordable housing units; 
and loans to minority and small-business owners located in 
underserved areas. 

Finally, it is impossible to measure the impact of individual 
volunteer work performed by Temple-Inland's employees. The 
company is proud of their activities and encourages even more 
participation as a way of showing gratitude and commitment to the 
many communities where employees live and work. 
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·The p.mnl I receiznl 1hm11p.h C11ww11y 111eun1 !he 
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l>w/(\· needed r<'/Wirs lo llrn l>alhmoms U!1(/ all <?/'my 
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Vivia n Arcen etLx. sel f-emp loyed baker, 
llouslon. Texas 

.\/rs. Arceneux receii;ed a Federa l /lam e Loan granl in 1999 Lhrough Cuaran('" 

"The mean! gun' me a head 

start on college. nu rinp: the 

summer. I used the money lo 

pa)· for tzrn courses and 

received six hours q/' cred i I. It\ 

amazing thal com1H111ies like 

Temple get so inrnlced tcilh 

communities. rm current(\· 

volunteering on a puhlic 

relations commilfee .fi>r the 

Oklahoma State /)eparlmenl <?{' 

Vocational and T<'Chnirnl 

Education. rm teaming a lot 

about business. and I hope l 

can help myjillure employer 

be the swne Lype qf' com1Hmy 

as Temple.·· 

John Cross, freshman , Oklahoma Stale Uni versity. 
SLilh1aLcr. Ok lahoma 

John receii-ed a scholar (llcard in 1999 
from Temple. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Results of Operations and Financial Condition 

Results of continuing operations, including information regarding the principal business segm ents, 

are shown below. Additional information regarding business segments is included in No te 10 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 
(in millions) 

REVENUES 

Paper s 1.798 $ 1,642 $ 1,694 $ 1,761 $ 1,910 

Building Products 768 613 617 563 533 

Financial Services 1.116 1,036 923 800 754 

Total revenues s:~.682 $ 3 ,291 $ 3 ,234 $3,124 $ 3,J 97 

INCOME BEFORE TAXl::S 

Paper s ·- 10:~ $ 39 $ (54) $ 120 $ 333 

Building Products 171 112 131 102 67 

Financial Services 1:rn 154 132 63a 98 

Segment operating incom e ,113 305 209 285 498 

Corporate expense 1 :~0 (28) (25) (17) (22) 

Special charge - (47) 

Parent Company interest - net 195) (78) (82) (82) (69) 

Other incom e 16 6 6 5 4 

Income from continuing 
operations before taxes s :~06 $ 158 $ 108 $ 191 $ 411 

alncludes a one-time assessment o.f $44 million to recapitalize the Savings Association Insurance Fund (SAJF). 
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PAPER 

The Paper Group manufactures linerboard and corrugating medium at six 
mills and converts it into corrugated packaging at 40 corrugated packaging 
plants located throughout the United States, and in Puerto Rico , Mexico and 
Chile. During the third quarter of 1999, the company decided to discontinue 
its bleached paperboard operation. Accordingly, the results of the bleached 
paperboard operation have been classified as discontinued operations and 
prior periods have been restated. 

Revenues for the Paper Group increased to $1,798 million in 1999, 
compared with $1 ,642 million in 1998 and $1 ,694 million in 1997. The 
Paper Group reported operating income of $103 million in 1999, compared 
with $39 million (before the special charges discussed below) in 1998 and a 
loss of $54 million in 1997. 

The following table shows the quarterly sales of the corrugated packaging 
operation in tons and dollars. The totals presented include both boxes sold 
and open market sales of linerboard. 

For the Year 1999 1998 1997 
UNIT SALES 
(in thousands of tons) 

1st Quarter 704 662 647 
2nd Quarter 720 628 719 
3rd Quarter 701 616 706 
4th Quarter 677 613 697 

2 ,802 2,519 2,769 

NET REVENUES 
(in millions) 

1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter 

$ 420 $ 432 $ 412 
444 420 433 
462 410 421 
472 380 428 

$ 1,798 $1,642 $1,694 

Average box prices in 1999 were up 3 percent following a 7 percent 
increase in 1998 and an 11 percent decrease in 1997. The increase in 
1999 reversed the downward movement of prices in the last half of 1998. 
Tons of boxes sold increased 5 percent in 1999, compared with a decrease 
of 3 percent in 1998 and an increase of 4 percent in 1997. 

The average cost of old corrugated containers (OCC), the principal raw 
material used in approximately 46 percent of the Paper Group's 
containerboard production, increased by $4 per ton in 1999. OCC cost 
decreased by $16 per ton in 1998 and increased by $16 per ton in 1997. 
Year-end OCC cost was $89 per ton in 1999, $85 per ton in 1998, and 
$101 per ton in 1997. 

Mill production totaled 2,656,000 tons in 1999, 2,499,000 tons in 1998 
and 2,761 ,000 tons in 1997. In 1999, approximately 88 percent of the 
containerboard produced was converted into corrugated containers by the 
Paper Group's box plants. The remainder was sold in the domestic and 
export markets. The Paper Group curtailed production by approximately 
236,000 tons in 1998 and 36,000 tons in 1997 to control inventory levels. 

During 1998, the Paper Group closed and dismantled its 70 ,000 ton 
corrugating medium mill in Newark, California, and recognized a gain of 
$13 million in 1999 from the sale of the real estate. In 1999, the company 
announced it had entered into a joint venture to convert its 285 ,000 ton 
containerboard mill in Newport, Indiana, to produce a lightweight 
gypsum facing paper. The conversion is expected to cost approximately 
$70 million and is scheduled for completion in the third quarter of 2000. 
This conversion will increase the group's integration level and diversify its 
product line. 

During 1999, the Paper Group continued implementing its Mplus 50 
program, the goal of which is to improve average return on investment to 
target levels over a cycle. The focus of the program is to create a distinctly 
market-driven culture in which customer demand determines the products, 
operating levels and capital investment necessary to achieve the goal. 
Employee compensation is tied to return on investment. 

A key to Mplus 50 is improving margins by targeting a more select 
customer base. In 1998, this group exited many low-value accounts faster 
than they could be replaced, and the Paper Group's volume in 1998 trailed 
the industry. This trend, however, reversed in 1999, and volume increases 
exceeded the industry average. The increase was predominantly in 
higher-value accounts. 

Installing a new information system is also an important part of the 
Mplus 50 program. This effort includes configuring new processes, installing 
a new technical infrastructure and software, and training users. This system, 
which is anticipated to be completed in 2001 and to cost approximately 
$70 million, will allow the Paper Group to improve performance to the 
customer and capture the benefits of e-commerce. 

The Mplus 50 program was initiated in 1998 and resulted in a special 1998 
charge that included $13 million in severance costs, write-offs of $4 million 
of abandoned packaging assets, and a $20 million impairment write-down of 
the Argentine box plant. Half of the 250 employees affected by the work force 
reduction accepted an early retirement offer in December 1998. The 
remaining work force reductions were made during 1999. Substantially all 
of the charge for work force reductions was paid in 1999. During the second 
quarter of 1999, the Argentine box plant was sold for $12 million, which 
approximated its adjusted carrying value. 
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During the third quarter of 1999, the company decided to discontinue its 
bleached paperboard operation. The bleached paperboard mill was sold in 
December 1999 to Westvaco Corporation for approximately $658 million, 
which included $576 million in cash and the assumption of $82 million of 
debt. The eucalyptus fiber project in Mexico, which was to be a source of 
hardwood to the bleached paperboard mill, is expected to be sold during 
2000. Revenues of the discontinued operations were $381 million in 1999, 
$3 76 million in 1998 and $369 million in 1997. The losses from discontinued 
operations were $92 million in 1999 (including a loss on disposal of 
$71 million), $21 million in 1998 and $8 million in 1997. Interest expense 
of $28 million per year was allocated to the discontinued operations based on 
debt allocated to these operations. The loss from operations is net of income 
tax benefits of $13 million in 1999, $13 million in 1998 and $5 million in 
1997. The loss on disposal is net of income tax benefits of $44 million. 
Included in the loss on disposal are estimated operating losses of the 
eucalyptus fiber project through the anticipated date of disposal of $2 million. 

BUILDING PRODUCTS 

The Building Products Group manufactures a diverse line of construction 
and commercial grade building products at 20 facilities located in Texas, 
Louisiana, Oklahoma, Arkansas, Alabama, Georgia, Pennsylvania, Tennessee 
and Canada. These facilities include four joint venture facilities and two 
facilities - a particleboard plant and a medium density fiberboard (MDF) 
plant - operated under long- term lease agreements that began during 
December 1999. The products manufactured are lumber, plywood, 
particleboard, MDF, gypsum wallboard, fiberboard and fiber-cement products. 

Operating income for the Building Products Group was $174 million in 
1999, an all-time record, exceeding the previous record of $139 million 
achieved in 1994. Operating income was $112 million in 1998, excluding 
the special charge discussed below, and $131 million in 1997. Revenues 
increased $155 million, or 25 percent, to $768 million in 1999, compared 
with $613 million in 1998 and $61 7 million in 1997. Housing starts were up 
3 percent in 1999, reaching the highest level since 1986. As a result, prices 
advanced in 1999 across all product lines. Lumber, plywood and MDF 
prices were up more than 10 percent, and gypsum prices were up almost 
25 percent from 1998. 

The following table provides information on unit sales and net revenues for 
each piroduct line. 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
UNIT SALESa 

Pine lU1IDber 618 603 639 
Plywood 296 289 281 
Particle board 574 518 470 
MDF 187 35 
Gypsum wallboard 890 858 843 
Fiberb0>ard 439 423 402 

NET RE.VENUESb 

(in millions) 

Pine lumber $254 $ 223 $262 
Plywood 68 60 55 
Particle board 171 141 125 
MDF 57 9 
Gypsum wallboard 147 116 105 
Fiberb@ard 71 64 66 
Retail 4 

Totals $768 $ 613 $ 617 

a unit sales are in millions of square feet, except pine lumber, which is in millions of board feet , and do 
not include units sold from joint venture operations. 

bNet revenues do not include revenues from joint venture operations. 

The solid wood operation manufactures lumber and plywood and manages 
the com pany's timber resources. Pine lumber shipments of 618 million board 
feet in~reased 2 percent from 1998, but decreased 3 percent from 1997. 
The Asian economy began to recover in 1999, resulting in increased industry 
exports of solid wood products and higher prices. For the year, the average 
sales pr ice for the solid wood operation increased 7 percent for lumber and 
11 percent for plywood, resulting in an increase in revenues for the solid 
wood (])peration of $39 million, or 14 percent. 

The major modernization project at the Euna, Texas, sawmill was 
comple ted in 1998, but modernization at the Diboll, Texas, sawmill continued 
througJ-1 the first quarter of 1999 and resulted in temporary production 
outages and reduced shipments. The modernization at the Diboll sawmill 
resultoo in the abandonment of $3 million of equipment, which was included 
in the 1998 special charge. Both plants are now operating at full capacity. 
During 1998, the company announced its intention to change the focus of the 
operations at its plywood plant. This plant will continue to produce veneer 
produc ts, and a state-of-the-art sawmill will be added to the site. This change 
will per mit the Building Products Group to optimize the use of available 
sawtimber and produce a higher value product. The construction of the new 
sawmill! in Pineland, Texas, is anticipated to be completed in early 2001. This 
effort r esulted in the write-down of $7 million related to certain plywood 
assets ~ which was also included in the 1998 special charge. 
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The solid wood operation also manages the company's 2.2 million acres 
of timberland, which are located in Texas, Louisiana, Georgia and Alabama. 
In 1999, this renewable resource provided approximately 60 percent of the 
company's sawtimber requirements and roughly 55 percent of the fiber 
necessary to operate the company's paper, particleboard and fiberboard 
converting operations. In connection with the sale of the bleached paperboard 
operation, the company entered into a long-term agreement with Westvaco 
Corporation to provide fiber at market rates. Based on current pricing, the 
company expects revenue from this agreement to approximate $40 million 
to $45 million per year, 

Using by-products of lumber processing, the group manufactures 
particleboard at five plants in Texas, Alabama , Arkansas, Georgia and 
Pennsylvania. Particleboard shipments increased 11 percent, and sales 
averages increased 9 percent over 1998. The improvement in sales averages is 
due primarily to the higher percentage of high-margin substrate for flooring 
in the product mix. Shipments of this substrate, produced at the Georgia and 
Alabama faciliti es, were more than triple 1998 shipments, contributing to a 
$30 million, or 21 percent, rise in particleboard revenues for the year. 
This compares with a 13 percent increase in 1998 and an 18 percent 
increase in 1997. 

In its first full year of operation , MDF was not profitable. However, MDF 
markets improved significantly throughout the year with sales averages at the 
end of 1999 exceeding year end 1998 levels by 19 percent. A strengthening 
MDF market, coupled with the natural progression up the production learning 
curve, should enable this operation to be profitable in 2000. 

On December 28 , 1999, the Building Products Group leased for a term of 
20 years an MDF facility and a particleboard facility located in Mt. Jewett, 
Pennsylvania. The lease includes an option to purchase these facilities in the 
fifteenth year of the lease term and at the end of the lease. The MDF facility 
has an annual capacity of approximately 100 million square feet, and the 
particleboard facility has an annual capacity of approximately 200 million 
square feet. The addition of these two mill s will allow the Building Products 
Group to meet customers' increasing demand for particleboard and strengthen 
its position in the growing MDF market. 

Record revenues of $14 7 million were achieved by the gypsum wallboard 
operation in 1999. Gypsum wallboard shipments of 890 million square feet 
were only 4 percent above 1998 levels, but revenues increased by $31 million, 
or 27 percent, due to the 23 percent increase in sales averages for the year. 
Demand reached record levels in 1999. A slight weakening of demand during 
November was followed by a more dramatic decline in December. Demand 
slowdown, combined with increased gypsum industry capacity and increased 
imports, put downward pressure on shipments and sales averages at year end. 
The company expects this downward pressure to continue throughout 2000. 

Production began at the new gypsum wallboard facility in Cumberland City, 
Tennessee, during the fourth quarter of 1999. The plant operates as a part 
of Standard Gypsum LLC, a joint venture in which the company owns a 
50 percent interest. This state-of-the-art facility has the capacity to produce 
approximately 700 million square feet of gypsum wallboard annually, and 
utilizes 100 percent flue gas desulphurization (synthetic) gypsum. The plant 
is located adjacent to a coal-fired steam electric generation plant, which 
produces syntheti c gypsum as a by-product of its air cleaning system. 
Independent of the joint venture, the company has negotiated a long-term 
contract for the synthetic gypsum produced at this elec tric generation plant. 
Synthetic gypsum acquired pursuant to thi s contract will supply the 
Cumberland City plant and the company's plant at West Memphi s, Arkansas. 

Fiber products revenues increased $7 million, or 11 percent, from 1998 
due to a 4 percent increase in shipments and a 7 percent increase in the 
overall sales average. High demand for Fiber Brace™ , an intermediate-grade 
fiberboard sheathing used for corner bracing, was responsible for the 
improved product mix. This product grew to represent 51 percent of the 
softboard mix and now commands a 45 percent share of the 112-inch 
structural fiberboard market. TrimCraft™ , the company's alternative lumber 
trim product, continued to gain market acceptance, with shipments of the 
product advancing 17 percent over 1998, the second consecutive year of 
double-digit growth. As a result, the company now holds a 25 percent share 
of the hardboard engineered trim market. 

In its first year of operation, Fortra Fiber Cement LLC, a 50 percent 
joint venture located in Waxahachie, Texas, was not profitable due to higher 
than expected production costs and lower than anti cipated sales averages. 
FORTRN" , the joint venture's brand-name fiber- cement product, provides 
numerous benefits , including: ease of cutting, fastening and finishing; low 
maintenance; immunity to water damage, salt spray and termite attack; 
and non-flammability. Management is undertaking a review of the operations 
to es tablish an appropriate course of action to achieve profitability at the 
venture. Alternatives being explored include, but are not limited to , an 
evaluation of the manufacturing processes, including the equipment and its 
use, to determine if modifications or changes can be made to enhance 
product offerings or improve operating efficiencies. 
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FINANCIAL SERVICES 

The Financial Services Group includes savings bank, mortgage banking, 
real estate and insurance brokerage operations. Selected financial information 
for each of these operations is presented below. 

FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP 
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

REVENUES 
Savings bank s BU $ 743 $ 711 
Mortgage banking 131 153 113 
Real estate l 11 107 69 
Insurance brokerage ;3;3 33 30 

Total revenues 8 1.116 $ 1,036 $ 923 

INCOME 
Savings bank s 109 $ 113 $ 107 
Mortgage banking 19 22 24 
Real estate 1 13 (4) 
Insurance brokerage 6 6 5 

Operating income ms 154 132 
Taxes on income 17 27 21 

Net income s 121 $ 127 $ 111 

AsSETS 
Savings bank s 12.892 $ 11 ,947 $ 10,371 
Mortgage banking :163 442 385 
Real estate ;313 295 268 
Insurance brokerage ;n 32 32 
Eliminations (280 (340) (284) 

Total assets 813.:321 $ 12 ,376 $ 10,772 

EQUITY 
Savings bank s 857 $ 559 $ 423 
Mortgage banking 91 84 82 
Real estate 53 48 58 
Insurance brokerage 22 17 13 

Total equity s 1.02:3 $ 708 $ 576 

Guaranty Federal Bank, F.S.B. (Guaranty), conducts business through 
155 banking centers in Texas and California. The Texas operations are 
concentrated in the metropolitan areas of Houston , Dallas/ Fort Worth, 
San Antonio and Austin, as well as the central and eastern regions of the 
state. The California operations are concentrated in the Central Valley and 
Southern California. The primary business of Guaranty is attracting savings 
deposits from the general public, investing in single-family adjustable-rate 
mortgages, lending for the construction of real estate projects and providing 
a variety of loan products to consumers and businesses. 

On October 26, 1999, Guaranty signed a definitive agreement to acquire all 
of the outstanding stock of American Finance Group, Inc. (AFG). AFG is a 
commercial finance company engaged in the leasing and secured financing of 
a variety of equipment for investment-grade "Fortune 1000" companies and 
creditworthy middle-market companies. AFG markets its products nationally 
through sales offices located in Boston, Massachusetts; Houston, Texas; 
Chicago, Illinois; Charlotte, North Carolina; and Minneapolis/ St. Paul, 
Minnesota. At December 31, 1999, AFG had total assets of approximately 
$188 million and total liabilities of approximately $157 million. This 
transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2000, with an 
anticipated purchase price of approximately $32 million in cash. 

On June 29, 1999, the company acquired all of the outstanding stock of 
HF Bancorp, Inc., the parent company of Hemet Federal Savings and Loan 
Association (Hemet), and merged the operations of Hemet into Guaranty. 
The consideration paid was approximately $119 million in cash. Hemet 
operated 18 branches in the Southern California markets of Riverside 
County, Palm Springs and northern San Diego County, and had assets at 
acquisition totaling approximately $1.2 billion, consisting primarily of 
loans and securities. 

On June 11 , 1999, Guaranty acquired the assets of Fidelity Funding 
Financial Group (Fidelity) for $18 million in cash. Fidelity, an asset-based 
lending operation, had assets at acquisition of approximately $111 million, 
consisting primarily of loans. 

On June 27, 1997, the company acquired all of the outstanding stock of 
California Financial Holding Company, the parent company of Stockton 
Savings Bank, F.S.B. (SSB), and merged the operations of SSB into Guaranty. 
Consideration for the transaction was $143 million, consisting of 
approximately 1,614,000 shares of Temple-Inland Inc. common stock and 
cash of $4 7 million. SSB operated 25 banking centers in the Central Valley 
area of California and had assets at acquisition totaling approximately 
$1.4 billion, consisting primarily of loans and securities. 
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Selected financial information for the Savings Bank operation is 
provided below. 

SAVINGS BANK 
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(do llars in millions) 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 
Net interest income $ 306 $ 246 $ 222 
Provision for loan losses (38) (1) 2 
Noninterest income 30 31 18 
Noninterest expense (174) (149) (1 28) 
Minority interest in income 

of subsidiary (15 ) (14) (7) 
Income before taxes $ 109 $ 113 $ 107 

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET 
Total earning assets $12.005 $ 10,390 $ 9,919 
Loans receivable and 

mortgage loans held for sale 9.308 7,440 6,531 
Mortgage-backed and 

other securities 2.344 2,602 2,722 
Deposits 8.416 7,579 7,091 
Securities sold under 

repurchase agreements 
and FHLB advances 2,795 2,242 2,574 

KEY RATIOS 
Yield on earning assets 6.91% 7.02% 7.06% 
Cost of funds 4.58% 4.82% 4.95% 
Net interest spread 2.33% 2.20% 2.11% 

During 1999, average loans receivable and mortgage loans held for sale 
constituted 78 percent of earning assets, compared with 72 percent during 
1998. Guaranty continued to securitize portions of the mortgage loans held 
in its portfolio during 1999, ending the year with $601 million in securitized 
mortgage loans. During 1999, the ratio of average loans receivable, mortgage 
loans held for sale and securitized mortgage loans to earning assets was 
83 percent, compared with 78 percent during 1998. 

Guaranty continued to increase the size and alter the mix of its loan 
portfolio through an increased focus on construction and development 
lending, commercial and business lending, and consumer lending, and the 
introduction of new products. In addition , real estate mortgage loans 
outstanding decreased in 1999. The change in the mix of the loan portfolio 
contributed to an increase in the provision for loan losses. These loans 
provide further geographic and product diversification and the opportunity 
fo r improved earnings in 2000. 

The allowance for loan losses is comprised of specific allowances (assessed 
for loans that have known credit weaknesses), general allowances and an 
unallocated allowance. Management continuously evaluates the allowance fo r 
loan losses to ensure the level is adequate to absorb losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses is increased by charges to income 
and by the portion of the purchase price related to credit risk on bulk 
purchases of loans, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. 

Specific allowances are established based on a thorough review of the 
financial condition of the borrower, general economic conditions affecting the 
borrower, collateral values and other factors. General allowances are 
established based on historical loss trends and management's judgment 
concerning those trends and other relevant factors, including delinquency 
rates, current economic conditions, loan size, industry competition and 
consolidation, and the effect of government regulation. The unallocated 
allowance is established for inherent loss exposures that are not yet 
specifically identified in the loan portfolio . The evaluation of the appropriate 
level of unallocated allowance considers current risk factors that may not 
be reflected in historical factors used to determine the specific and 
general allowances. 

Guaranty recorded a $38 million provision for loan losses in 1999, 
compared with $1 million in 1998 and a $2 million negative provision in 
1997. The increase in the provision in 1999 was primarily related to the 
growth in, and the alteration of the mix of, the loan portfolio. 

At year end 1999, the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of loans 
receivable increased to 1.20 percent from 1.06 percent at year end 1998. 
The increase was primarily driven by the changes in the portfolio discussed 
above and the acquisition of Hemet. At year end 1998, the allowance for 
loan losses as a percentage of loans receivable decreased to 1.06 percent from 
1.41 percent at year end 1997. The decrease in 1998 compared with 1997 was 
primarily driven by a 30 percent decline in the purchased loan portfolios and 
a reduction in the related allowance for loan losses. 

Net interest income for 1999 increased $60 million from 1998 as earning 
assets increased. A large portion of the growth was the result of the 
Hemet acquisition discussed above. Net interest income for 1998 increased 
$24 million from 1997, due primarily to average earning asset growth related 
to the acquisition of SSB discussed above. 

Noninterest income, which primarily consists of service charges on deposits 
and gains or losses on the sale of loans, totaled $30 million in 1999, down 
from $31 million in 1998 and up significantly from $18 million in 1997. 
The increase from 1997 is primarily due to losses incurred on the sale of 
loans and securities in 1997, compared with gains on similar activity in 1998 
and 1999. 
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Noninterest expense for 1999 increased $25 million from 1998, primarily 
as the result of the Hemet acquisition. Noninterest expense in 1998 increased 
$21 million , compared with 1997, primarily due to the SSB acquisition. 

The operations of Guaranty are subject to a risk of interest rate fluctuation 
to the extent that interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities 
mature or reprice at different times or in differing amounts. Because 
approximately 88 percent of Guaranty's assets at year end 1999 have 
adjustable rates, this risk is significantly mitigated. 

Guaranty is also subject to prepayment risk inherent in a portion of its 
single-family adjustable-rate mortgage assets. A substantial number of 
Guaranty's investments in adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities have 
annual or lifetime caps that subject Guaranty to interest rate risk should 
rates rise above certain levels. To optimize net interest income while 
maintaining acceptable levels of interest rate and liquidity risk, Guaranty, 
from time to time, will enter into various interest rate contracts to better 
match assets and liabilities. 

On May 28 , 1997, a newly formed subsidiary of Guaranty, which qualifies 
as a real estate investment trust (REIT), issued $150 million of noncumulative 
floating rate preferred stock in a private placement. The preferred stock 
qualifies for inclusion in regulatory capital , subject to certain limitations. 
The REIT issued an additional $75 million of noncumulative floating rate 
preferred stock on May 28 , 1998. 

OTS regulations require savings institutions to maintain certain minimum 
levels of capital. Guaranty's regulatory capital exceeded all applicable capital 
requirements at year end 1999. The company expects to maintain Guaranty's 
capital at a level that exceeds the minimum required for designation as 
"well capitalized" under OTS regulations. Additional information concerning 
Guaranty's capital requirements is included in the Notes to the Summarized 
Financial Statements of the Financial Services Group . 

\lm·tg 

Mortgage banking is conducted primarily through Temple-Inland Mortgage 
Corporation (TIMC), which arranges financing of single-family mortgage 
loans, securitizes the loans and sells them in the secondary market (primarily 
Fannie Mae, FHLMC and GNMA securities). 

Selected financial information is provided below. 

MORTGAGE BANKING 
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

For the year 1999 1998 
(dollars in millions) 

PORTFOLIO ROLL-FORWARD 
Beginning servicing $ 22,886 $ 26,082 
Purchased servicing 3,884 3,536 
New loans added, net of 

flow releases 2.383 3,375 
Portfolio releases (2,155) (3,210) 
Run-off (4,815) (6,897) 
Ending servicing $ 22,183 $ 22 ,886 

Portfolio growth rate (3.1)% (1 2.3)% 
Run-off factor 21.0% 28.9% 
Ending number of 

loans serviced 241,400 256,300 

1997 

$ 17,851 
9,497 

2,600 

(3,866) 
$ 26,082 

46.1% 
16.8% 

351 ,600 

Rising interest rates during 1999 resulted in a significant industrywide 
reduction in mortgage refinancing activity, contributing to a reduction in both 
mortgage origination volume and prepayments. Mortgage origination volume 
fell to $3.7 billion in 1999, compared with $6.1 billion in 1998. Portfolio 
run-off declined to 21.0 percent, compared with 28 .9 percent in 1998. 

The mortgage servicing portfolio fell to $22 .2 billion at year end 1999, 
compared with $22.9 billion at year end 1998. TIMC continued its program of 
strategic acquisition and sales of servicing portfolios, resulting in significantly 
improved portfolio characteristics. The value of the servicing portfolio 
improved during 1999, as rising interest rates reduced actual and estimated 
future prepayment speeds, allowing for the reversal of $16 million of the 
mortgage servicing valuation allowance provided in 1998. 

The decline in mortgage origination volume has necessitated staff 
reductions, branch closures and consolidations. The number of staff 
positions was reduced by approximately 300 during 1999. 

Real estate operations conducted primarily by Lumbermen's Investment 
Corporation (Lumbermen's) include the development of residential 
subdivisions and the management and sale of income properties. Land 
development projects include 38 residential subdivisions in Texas, California, 
Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Missouri , Tennessee and Utah. At year end 1999, 
land development inventory included 2,238 residential lots, 585 lots under 
development and 6,371 acres of land. 

Lot sales for 1999 were 1,512 , compared with 1,594 for 1998 and 1,422 for 
1997. Revenues from residential operations, which includes lot sales, tract 
sales and other income, were $79 million in 1999, $58 million in 1998 and 
$43 million in 1997. 
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Revenues from commercial operations were $29 million in 1999, 
$46 million in 1998 and $21 million in 1997. Commercial revenues include a 
$10 million gain in 1998 from Lhe sale of a commercial investment property. 
Lumbermen 's owns 18 commercial properties, including two hotels, one retail 
center, two business parks, five parcels of commercial land and properties 
owned through joint venture interests. These properties are located in Texas, 
New Mexico, Florida and California. 

Timberline Insurance Manage rs, Inc. (Timberline), one of the largest 
insurance agencies in Texas, operates as a general agency selling a full range 
of insurance products, including automobile, homeowners and business 
insurance, as well as annuities and life and health products. The agency also 
acts as a risk manager of Temple-Inland Inc. Timberline currently has offices 
in Austin, Houston, Dallas/ Fort Worth, El Paso and San Antonio, Texas. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

The company is committed to protecting the health and welfare of its 
employees, the public and the environment, and strives to maintain 
compliance with all stale and federal environmental regulations. When 
constructing new facilities or modernizing existing facilities, the company 
uses state-of-the-art technology for controlling air and water emissions. 
These forward-looking programs should minimize the effect that changin g 
regulations have on capital expenditures for environmental compliance. 

Future expenditures for environmental control facilities will depend on 
changing laws and regulations and technological advances. Given these 
uncertainties, the company estimates that capital expenditures for 
environmental purposes during the period 2000 through 2002 will average 
approximately $20 million each year, exclusive of the expenditures for 
compliance discussed below. 

On April 15, 1998, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the EPA) 
issued extensive regulations governing air and water emissions from the pulp 
and paper industry (the Cluster Rule). Compliance with various phases of the 
Cluster Rule will be required al certain interval s over the next few years. 
According to the EPA, the technology standards in the Cluster Rule will cut 
the industry's toxic air pollutant emissions by almost 60 percent from current 
levels and virtually eliminate all dioxin discharged from pulp, paper and 
paperboard mills into rivers and other surface waters. The Cluster Rule also 
provides incentives for individual mills Lo adopl technologies that will lead to 
further reduction s in toxic pollutant discharges. 

The estimated capital expenditures di sclosed above do not in clude 
expenditures that may be needed to comply with the Cluster Rul e. Based 
on its interpretation of the Cluster Rule as issued, the company currently 
estimates that compliance with the Cluster Rul e may require modifications 
at several facilities. Some of these modifications can be included in 
modernization projects Lhat will provide economic benefits to the company. 
Excluding these investments, the company has incurred approximately 
$1 million toward Cluste r Rul e comp liance through the end of J 999 , 

excluding such expenditures related to discontinued operations, and expects 
that remaining expenditures related to Cluster Rule compliance will nol 
exceed an additional $20 million by the initial compliance deadline of 
April 15, 2001. 

New effluent (water) quality standards for unbleached paper mills were not 
included in the phase I Cluster Rule as promulga ted. These standards are 
expected to be promulgated between 2000 and 2002. Also not included in the 
phase I Cluster Rule was the proposed Maximum Achievable Control 
Technology (MACT) II Standard for the control of hazardous air pollutant 
emissions from pulp and paper mill co mbustion sources. The timeline for 
final promulgation of the MACT II Standard for the control of hazardous air 
pollutant emissions is uncertain at this time pending resolution of substantive 
issues raised during the public comment period and as subsequently 
addressed by industry stakeholder groups. Preliminary estimates indicate that 
the company could be required to make total capital expenditures of up to 
$40 million over the next few years folJowing issuance of these final rules. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY 

The company's financial condition continues to be strong. Internally 
generated funds, existing credit facilities and the capacity to issue long-term 
debt are sufficient Lo fund projected capital expenditures, service existing 
debt, pay dividends and meet normal working capital requirements. 

Capital expenditures of approximately $230 million are projected for 2000. 

Parent Company interest expense was $95 million in 1999, $78 million 
in 1998 and $82 million in 1997. The increase in 1999 is primarily due to 
higher levels of debt outstanding during the year. The decrease in 1998 was 
primarily due to lower average rates. 

On December 29, 1999, proceeds from the sale of Lh e bleached paperboard 
operation were used to pay off the $200 mi1lion term note due 2002 with 
interest rates averaging 5.44 percent in 1999, and $309 million of short-term 
borrowings with interes t rates averaging 5.71 percent in 1999. 

During 1998, $90 million of notes payable with interes t rates averaging 
approximately 9 percent and private placement debt of $80 million with 
interes t rates averaging 7 percent were paid off and replaced with commercial 
paper and short-term borrowings with interest rates averaging 5. 77 percent at 
year end 1998. 

AL year end 1999, the Parent Company had credit agreements with banks 
totaling $560 million, with final maturities at various dates in 2001 and 2002, 
that support commercial paper and other short-term borrowings. Current 
maturities of debt totaling $79 million are classified as long-term debt in 
accordance wilh the compan y's intent and ability to refinance such 
obligations on a long-term basis. 
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In the fourth quarter of 1999 , the Board of Directors authorized a stock 
repurchase program of up to 6.0 million shares. At year end 1999, 
approximately 1.65 million shares had been repurchased at a cost of 
approxim ately $100 million. 

INCOME TAXES 

The company's effective tax rate on continuing operations was 38 percent 
in 1999, 44 percent in 1998, and 45 percent in 1997. The 1999 effective tax 
rate was lower than the statutory tax rate due to a one-time finan cial benefit 
realized from the sale of a foreign subsidiary. In 1998 and 1997, the 
differences between the statutory rate and the annual effective tax rate were 
primarily attributable to operating losses in foreign operations for which no 
financial benefit was recognized and nondeductible goodwill associated 
with acquisitions. 

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has concluded its examination of the 
company's consolidated tax returns for the years 1987 through 1992. As a 
result, the company has agreed to pay approximately $36 million in taxes and 
interest for those years, of which $19 million was paid in 1999. The IRS is 
currently examining the company's consolidated tax returns for the years 
1993 through 1996. The resolution of these examinations is not expected to 
have an adverse effect on the company's financial condition or results 
of operations. 

EFFECTS OF INFLATION 

Inflationary increases in operating costs since 1997 have not been 
significant. The Parent Company's fixed assets, including timber and 
timberlands, are reflected at their historical costs. At current replacement 
costs, depreciation expense and the cost of timber harvested would be 
significantly higher than amounts reported. 

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE 

The company completed all Year 2000 (Y2K) readiness preparations prior to 
year end 1999. Contingency plans were developed for handling potential 
business and operational disruptions. No Y2K occurrence required the 
execution of any contingency plan. 

As expected, no significant business or production operations were affected 
by Y2K. A few minor incorrect dates were identified on internal company 
reports, all of which were corrected immediately. The company has declared 
the Y2K efforts complete and successful. 

No additional Y2K exposures are anticipated in the future. Company 
operations continue without interruptions. 

Cost fo r Y2K concerns was $12 million and these expenditures had no 
material effect on business operations. No material future costs are expected 
to be incurred. 

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The company will be required to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivatives Instruments and Hedging 
Activities , beginning 2001. This statement will require derivative positions 
to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. The company has not 
yet determined the effect on earnings or financial position of adopting 
this statement. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK 

The company is subject to interest rate risk from the utilization of financial 
instruments such as adjustable-rate debt and other borrowings, as well as the 
lending and deposit gathering activities of the Financial Services Group . 
The following table illustrates the estimated impact on pre-tax income of 
immediate, parallel and sustained shifts in interest rates for the subsequent 
12-month period at year end 1999, with comparative information at year 
end 1998: 

Change in Interest Rates 
(in millions) 

+2 % 
+ 1 % 

0 % 
-1 % 
-2 % 

Increase/(Decrease) in Income 

Before Taxes 

1999 1998 

s (I) $ (26) 
$ - $ (1) 
$ - $ 
s (I ) $ 10 
s (16) $ 29 

The change in exposure to interest rate risk from year end 1998 is due 
primarily to a decrease in the Parent Company's adjustable-rate debt 
obligations and the diminishing impact at Guaranty of interest rate hedge 
contracts that have matured or are significantly closer to maturity. 

Additionally, the fair value (estimated at $329 million at year end 1999) of 
the Financial Services Group's mortgage servicing rights is also affected by 
changes in interest rates. The company estimates that a 1 percent decline in 
interest rates from year-end levels would decrease the fair value of the 
mortgage servicing rights by approximately $4 7 million . 

The company's exposure to foreign currency fluctuations on its financial 
instruments is not material because most of these instruments are 
denominated in U.S. dollars. 

The company has no significant financial instruments subject to 
commoditv m ice risks. 
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In the fourth quarter of l 999, the Board of Directors authorized a stock 
repurchase program of up to 6.0 million shares. AL year end 1999, 
approximately 1.65 million shares had been repurchased at a cost of 
approximately $100 million. 

INCOME TAXES 

The company's effective tax rate on continuing operations was 38 percent 
in 1999, 44 percent in 1998, and 45 percent in l.997 . The 1999 effective tax 
rate was lower than the statutory tax rate due to a one-time financial benefit 
realized from the sale of a foreign subsidiary. In 1998 and 1997, the 
differences between the statutory rate and the annual effective tax rate were 
primarily attributable to operating losses in foreign operations for which no 
financial benefit was recognized and nondeductible goodwill associated 
with acquisitions. 

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has concluded its examination of the 
company's consolidated tax returns for the years 1987 through 1992. As a 
result, the company has agreed to pay approximately $36 million in taxes and 
interest for those years, of which $19 million was paid in 1999. The IRS is 
currently examining the company's consolidated tax returns for the years 
1993 through 1996. The resolution of these examinations is not expected to 
have an adverse effect on the company's financial condition or results 
of operations. 

EFFECTS 0 F INFLATI 0 N 

Inflationary increases in operating costs since 1997 have not been 
significant. The Parent Company's fixed assets, including timber and 
timberlands, are reflected at their historical costs. At current replacement 
costs, depreciation expense and the cost of timber harvested would be 
significantly higher than amounts reported. 

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE 

The company completed all Year 2000 (Y2K) readiness preparations prior to 
year end 1999. Contingency plans were developed for handling potential 
business and operational disruptions. No Y2K occurrence required the 
execution of any contingency plan. 

As expected, no significant business or production operations were affected 
by Y2K. A few minor incorrect dates were identified on internal company 
reports, all of which were corrected immediately. The company has declared 
the Y2K efforts complete and successful. 

No additional Y2K exposures are anticipated in the future. Company 
operations con tinue without interrup tions. 

Cost for Y2K concerns was $12 million and these expenditures had no 
material effect on business operations. No material future costs are expected 
to be incurred. 

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The company will be required to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivatives Instruments and Hedging 
Activities, beginning 2001. This statement will require derivative positions 
to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. The company has not 
yet determined the effect on earnings or financial position of adopting 
thi s statement. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK 

The company is subject to interest rate risk from the utilization of financial 
instruments such as adjustable-rate debt and other borrowings, as well as the 
lending and deposi t gathering activities of the Financial Services Group. 
The following table illustrates the estimated impact on pre-tax income of 
immediate, parallel and sustained shifts in interest rates for the subsequent 
12-month period at year end 1999, with comparative information at year 
end 1998: 

Change in Interest Rates 
(in millions) 

+2 % 
+ 1 % 

0 % 
-1 % 
-2 % 

Increase/(Decrease) in Income 
Before Taxes 

1999 1998 

8 (1 ) $ (26) 
8 - $ (1) 
8 - $ 
8 J $ 10 
s ( 16) $ 29 

The change in exposure to interest rate risk from year end 1998 is due 
primarily to a decrease in the Parent Company's adjustable-rate debt 
obligations and the diminishing impact at Guaranty of interest rate hedge 
contracts that have matured or are significantly closer to maturity. 

Additionally, the fair value (estimated at $329 million at year end 1999) of 
the Financial Services Group's mortgage servicing rights is also affected by 
changes in interest rates. The company estimates that a 1 percent decline in 
interest rates from year-end levels would decrease the fair value of the 
mortgage servicing rights by approximately $4 7 million. 

The company's exposure to foreign currency fluctuations on its financial 
instruments is not material because most of these instruments are 
denominated in U.S. dollars. 

The company has no significant financial instrumf'nts subject to 
commoditv orice risks. 
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For the year 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 
(in millions, except per share data) 

REVENUES 
Paper s 1.798 $ 1,642 $ 1,694 $ 1,761 $ 1,910 $ 1,498 $ 1,308 $ 1,310 $ 1,179 $ 1,144 
Building Products 768 613 617 563 533 575 497 409 311 305 
Financial Services 1.116 1,036 923 800 754 628 631 634 607 509 
Other activities - 20 58 77 68 70 

Total revenues $ 3,682 $ 3,291 $ 3,234 $ 3,124 $ 3,197 $ 2,721 $ 2,494 $ 2,430 $ 2,165 $ 2,028 
SEGMENT OPERATING INCOME 

Paper $ 10;3 $ 39 $ (54) $ 120 $ 333 $ 89 $ 10 $ 107 $ 72 $ 146 
Building Products 174 112 131 102 67 139 102 40 5 9 
Financial Services 138 154 132 63a 98 56 68 64 54 52 
Other activities - 1 (2) (2) 1 (2) 

Segment OQerating income $ 415 $ 305 $ 209 $ 285 $ 498 $ 285 $ 178 $ 209 $ 132 $ 205 
Income from continuing operations $ 191 $ 88b $ 59 $ 155 $ 269 $ 142 $ 70 $ 130 $ 87 $ 169 
Discontinued operations (92) (21) (8) (22) 12 (11) (3) 17 51 63 
Cumulative effect of accounting 

change - (3) 50 
Net income $ 99 $ 64 $ 51 $ 133 $ 281 $ 131 $ 117 $ 147 $ 138 $ 232 
Capital expenditures: 

Manufacturing $ 178 $ 157 $ 213 $ 250 $ 245 $ 190 $ 145 $ 273 $ 281 $ 260 
Financial Services 26 39 18 15 34 20 14 11 9 4 

Depreciation and depletion: 
Manufacturing 200 192 187 178 166 160 155 138 130 112 
Financial Services 17 14 13 12 8 8 6 5 4 5 

Earnings per share - continuing operations: 
Basic 3.45 1.60 1.05 2.79 4.81 2.55 1.27 2.35 1.60 3.09 
Diluted 3.43 1.59 1.04 2.79 4.80 2.55 1.26 2.34 1.59 3.06 

Earnings per share - net income: 
Basic I. 79 l.16C 0.91 2.39 5.02 2.35 2.12ct 2.66 2.53 4.24 
Dilu ted 1. 78 l. 15C 0.90 2.39 5.01 2.35 2.lld 2.65 2.51 4.20 

Dividends per common share 1.28 1.28 1.28 1.24 1.14 1.02 1.00 0.96 0.88 0.80 
Weighted average shares outstanding: 

Basic 55.6 55 .8 56.0 55.5 56.0 55.8 55.3 55.1 54.8 54.9 
Diluted 55.8 55.9 56.2 55.6 56.1 55.9 55 .5 55 .5 55 .2 55.4 

Common shares outstanding at 
year end 54.2 55.6 56.3 55.4 55.7 56 .0 55 .5 55 .2 54.9 54.6 

At Year End 
Total assets 816,186 $15,868 $ 14,257 $ 12,858 $ 12 ,682 $ 12,169 $ 11 ,877 $ 10,732 $ 10,034 $ 7,800 
Long-term debt: 

Parent Company L253 1,501 1,356 1,440 1,407 1,234 963 930 830 467 
Financial Services 212 210 167 133 113 82 76 99 76 94 

Stock issued by subsidiary 226 225 150 
Shareholders' equity l ,927 1,998 2,045 2,015 1,975 1,783 1,700 1,633 1,532 1,439 
Ratio of total debt to total 

caQitalization - Parent ComEany 39% 43% 40% 42% 42% 41% 36% 36% 35% 25% 
a Includes a one-time assessment of $44 million to recapitalize the Savings Association Insurance Fund (SAJF). C[ncludes a $3 million after-tax charge, or $0.06 per share, from cumulative effect of accounting change. 

bJncludes a pre-tax special charge of $47 million. dJncludes a credit of $50 million, or $0. 90 per share, from cumulative effect of accounting change. 

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION 

1999 1998 
Prfre Range Price Range 

High Lm\ Dhidends High Low Dividends 
First Quarter $ 67-:3 4 $56-7 / J6 s 0.32 $64-15/ 16 $ 50 $ 0.32 
Second Quarter 77-l 2 61-:3 18 o.:32 67-1/4 52-1/8 0.32 
Third Quarter 7:3-7116 58 0.32 55-15/ 16 42-11 / 16 0.32 
Fourth Quarter 66-1 16 53-5 8 0.32 59-5/ 8 45-1/16 0.32 
For the Year s 77-1 2 $ 53-5 8 s 1.28 $ 67-1/4 $ 42-11 / 16 $ 1.28 

Copied from an original at The History Center, Diboll, Texas.     www.TheHistoryCenterOnline.com     1993:001



SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc. ) 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

REVENUES 

Net revenues $2.566 $2,255 $2 ,311 
Financial Services earnings ms 154 132 

2.701 2,409 2,443 

COSTS AND EXPENSES 

Cost of sales 2.052 1,868 2,007 
Selling and administrative 267 264 252 
Special charge - 47 

2.319 2,179 2,259 

OPERATING INCOME 385 230 184 
Interest - net 95) (78) (82) 
Other 16 6 6 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES 306 158 108 
Taxes on income 115 70 49 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 191 88 59 
Discontinued operations (92 ) (21) (8) 

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT 

OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE 99 67 51 
Cumulative effect of accounting change - (3) 

NET INCOME s 99 $ 64 $ 51 

See the notes to the Parent Company summarized financial statements. 
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc. ) 

For the year I 999 
(in millions) 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATIONS 

Net income $ 99 
Adjustments to reconcile 

net income to net cash : 
Loss on di sposal of 

di scontinued operations 
Cumulative effect of 

accounting change 
Special charge 
Depreciation and depletion 
Def erred taxes 
Unremitted earnings from 

financial services 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 
Change in net assets of 

di scontinued operations 
Other 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTMENTS 

Capital expenditures for 
property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from sale of 
discontinued operations 

Proceeds from sale of 
property and equipment 

Acquisitions, net of cash 
acquired, and joint ventures 

Capital contributions to 
finan cial services 

Dividends from 
financial services 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING 

Additions to debt 
Payments of debt 
Purchase of stock for treasury 
Cash dividends paid 

to shareholders 
Other 

Net increase (decrease) in 
cash and cash equ ivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
at beginning of year 

77 

200 
IO 

(121 ) 
174 ) 

( l ) 

·12 

2:"l 
(5) 

247 

(178) 

576 

55 

(48 

(279J 

70 
196 

312 
(560) 
( IOO) 

(71 ) 
12 

(407) 

36 

15 
Cash and cash equivalents 

at end of year s 51 

1998 

$ 64 

$ 

3 
47 

192 
17 

(12 7) 
(11) 

2 

(16) 

63 
12 

246 

(157) 

6 

(121) 

(44) 

44 
(272) 

319 
(175) 

(48) 

(71 ) 

3 
28 

2 

13 

15 

1997 

$ 51 

$ 

187 
17 

(lll ) 
13 

(15) 

(12) 

34 
(l 3) 
151 

(213) 

52 

(31) 

(25) 

275 
58 

36 
(125) 

(59) 

(71) 
9 

(210) 

(l ) 

14 

13 

NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY 
(TEMPLE-INLAND INC.) 
SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

HT \ I ""' 

......... I ( 

The summarized financial statements include the accounts of the 
Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc. ) and its manufacturing subsidiaries. 
Temple-Inland Financial Services, including the savings bank, mortgage 
banking, real estate and insurance brokerage operations, is reflected in the 
summarized financial statements on the equity basis, except that related 
earnings are presented before tax to be consistent with the consolidated 
financial statements. All material intercompany amounts and transactions 
have been eliminated. These financial statements should be read in 
conjunction with the Temple-Inland Inc. consolidated financial statements 
and the Temple-Inland Financial Services summarized financial statements. 

\I\ IOIW"" 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. 

Cost of inventories amounting to $85 million at year end 1999 and 
$78 million at year end 1998 was determined by the last-in , first-out 
method (LIFO). The cost of the remaining inventories was determined 
principally by the average cost method , which approximates the first-in, 
first-out method (FIFO). 

If the FIFO method of accounting had been applied to those inventories 
that were costed on the LIFO method, inventories would have been 
$21 million and $2 million higher than reported at year end 1999 
and 1998, respectively. 

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less allowances for accumulated 
depreciation and depletion. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line 
method based on estimated useful lives as follows: 

CLASSIFICATION 
Buildings 
Machinery and equipment: 

Manufacturing and production equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Office and other equipment 

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES 
15 to 40 years 

3 to 25 years 
3 to 10 years 
2 to 10 years 
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Certain machinery and production equipment is depreciated based on 
operating hours or units of production because depreciation occurs primarily 
through use rather than through elapsed time. 

Timberlands are stated at cost, less accumulated cost of timber harvested. 
The portion of the cost of timberlands attributed to standing timber is 
charged against income as timber is harvested, at rates determined annually 
based on the relationship of unamortized timber costs to the estimated 
volume of recoverable timber. The costs of seedlings and reforestation of 
timberlands are capitalized. 

The cost of additions and betterments is capitalized, and the cost of 
maintenance and repairs is expensed. 

Effective with the beginning of the year 1998, start-up costs are expensed 
as incurred instead of being deferred and amortized over a five-year period. 
The cumulative effect of applying this change was $3 million , net of tax 
benefit of $2 million, and was recognized as of the beginning of the year 
1998. Had start-up costs been expensed in prior years, net income would not 
have been materially different. 

Environmental expenditures resulting in additions to property and 
equipment are capitalized, while other environmental expenditures are 
expensed. Environmental remediation liabilities are recorded on an 
undiscounted basis, when environmental assessments or cleanups are 
probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated, and are adjusted as 
further information develops or circumstances change. The estimated 
costs to close and remediate company-operated landfills are accrued over 
the estimated useful life of the landfill . 

Revenue is recognized upon passage of title to the customer, which is 
generally at the time of shipment. 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 

At year end 1999 1998 
(in millions) 

Commercial paper, other 
short-term borrowings, 
and borrowings under bank 
credit agreements - Average 
interest rate was 5. 71 % in 1999 
and 5.75% in 1998 s - $ 264 

9.0% Notes Payable due 2001 200 200 

8.125% to 8.38% Notes Payable due 2006 100 100 

7.25% Notes Payable due 2004 JOO 100 

8.25% Debentures due 2022 150 150 

6. 75% Notes Payable due 2009 300 

Private placement debt ~ 
6.59% to 7.31% Notes due 
1998 through 2007 188 258 

Term Note due 2002 -
Average interest rate was 5.44% in 1999 
and 5.81 % in 1998 - 200 

Revenue Bonds due 2007 through 2028 -
Average interest rate was 4.58% in 1999 
and 4.05% in 1998 119 119 

Other indebtedness due through 2006 -
Average interes t rate was 5.96% in 1999 
and 6.30% in 1998 97 112 

L25t 1,503 
LESS: 
Current portion of long-term debt (1) (2) 

$ 1,2.3:3 $ 1,501 

At year end 1999, the Parent Company had credit agreements with banks 
totaling $560 million with final maturities at various dates in 2001 and 
2002 that support commercial paper and other short-term borrowings. In 
June 1998, the company filed a shelf registration statement to issue up to 
$500 million in debt securities, of which $300 million were issued in the first 
quarter of 1999. Current maturities of debt totaling $79 million are classified 
as long-term deb t in accordance with the company's in tent and ability to 
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refinance such obligations on a long-term basis. On December 29, 1999, 
proceeds from the sale of the bleached paperboard operation were used to 
pay off the $200 million term note due 2002 and $309 million of 
short-term borrowings. 

Maturities of the Parent Company's long-term debt during the next five 
years are as follows (in millions): 2000 - $80; 2001 - $202; 2002 - $56; 
2003 - $62; and 2004 - $101. 

Interest on funds borrowed during the construction period on certain 
assets is capitalized. Capitalized interest in 1999, 1998 and 1997 was 
$2 million , $1 million and $2 million , respectively, and is netted against 
interest expense. Parent Company interest paid during 1999, 1998 and 
1997 was $11 7 million, $101 million and $105 million , respectively. 

During the fourth quarter of 1998, the Parent Company recorded a special 
charge of $4 7 million. The charge included $13 million related to work force 
reductions in the Paper Group , $24 million related to asset impairments 
principally related to the Paper Group's Argentine box plant, and $10 million 
of asset impairments related to the Building Products Group. 

The work force reductions affected approximately 250 employees, half of 
whom accepted an early retirement offer in December 1998. The remaining 
work force reductions were made during 1999. Of the $13 million charge fo r 
work force reductions, which included termination benefits associated with 
the early retirement offer and severance amounts fo r the involuntary 
terminations, substantially all was paid in 1999. 

During the second quarter of 1999, the company sold its Argentine box 
plant for an amount that approximated its adjusted carrying value. The sale 
proceeds included $1 million in cash and $11 million in promissory notes. 
The promissory notes were subsequently sold with recourse. In addition , the 
company expects to collect $8 million of working capital and other items over 
the next two years. The company does not believe that any issues arising from 
the resolution of these matters will have a material adverse effect on its 
operations or financial position. 

Of the $34 million in asset impairments provided fo r in 1998, $20 million 
was for the Argentine box plant, $8 million was for manufacturing assets 
abandoned in 1998 and $6 million was for property and equipment that is 
still in use. 

During the third quarter of 1999, the company decided to discontinue its 
bleached paperboard operation. Accordingly, the results of the bleached 
paperboard operation have been classified as discontinued operations, and 
prior periods have been restated. The bleached paperboard mill was sold in 
December 1999 fo r approximately $658 million , which included $576 million 
in cash and the assumption of $82 million of debt. The eucalyptus fiber 
project in Mexico, which was to be a source of hardwood to the bleached 
paperboard mill , is expected to be sold during 2000. 

Information related to the discontinued operations foll ows: 

For the year 1999 1998 
(in millions) 

Revenues s :rn1 $ 376 
Loss from operations (21 (21) 
Loss on disposal 17] ; 

1997 

$ 369 
(8) 

Interest expense of $28 million per year was allocated to the discontinued 
operations based on debt allocated to the operations. The loss from operations 
is net of income tax benefits of $13 million in 1999, $13 million in 1998 and 
$5 million in 1997. 

The loss on disposal is net of income tax benefits of $44 million. Included 
in the loss on disposal are $2 million of estimated operating losses of the 
eucalyptus fiber project through the anticipated date of disposal. 

In connection with the sale of the bleached paperboard mill , the company 
has agreed, subject to certain limitations, to indemnify the purchaser from 
certain liabilities and contingencies associated with the company's operation 
and ownership of the mill. The company does not believe that the resolution 
of these matters will have a material adverse effect on its operations or 
financial position. 

Subsidiaries of the Parent Company lease timberlands, equipment and 
facilities under operating lease agreements. Future minimum rental 
commitments, exclusive of related expenses, under non-cancelable operating 
leases having a remaining term in excess of one year are as follows (in 
millions): 2000 - $31 ; 2001 - $26; 2002 - $20; 2003 - $17; 2004 - $16; 
2005 and thereafter - $250 . 

Total rent expense was $34 million , $30 million and $29 million during 
1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

In connection with its joint venture operations, the Parent Company has 
guaranteed certain obligations or issued standby letters of credit aggregating 
$123 million at year end 1999. 

The Parent Company has unconditional purchase obligations, principally 
fn r t irri h Pr ::l!TOT PO"::J tin !T S!:c; f\ mi lli on ::i t vP::ir Pnrl l 000 
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Financial Services Group 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

INTEREST INCOME 
Loans receivable and mortgage 

loans held for sale 8705 $ 584 $ 526 
Mortgage-backed and other 

securities available-for-sale 78 77 62 
Mortgage-backed and other 

securities held-to-maturity ,13 73 99 
Other earning assets 5 4 22 

Total interest income 8:36 738 709 

INTEREST Ex PENSE 
Deposits 379 357 331 
Borrowed funds 158 137 157 

Total interest expense 5;37 494 488 

NET INTEREST INCOME 299 244 221 
Provision for loan losses :rn 1 (2) 

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER 
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 261 243 223 

NONINTEREST INCOME 
Loan origination, marketing 

and servicing fees , net ll5 135 105 
Other 165 163 109 

Total noninterest income 280 298 214 

NONINTEREST EXPENSE 
Compensation and benefits 166 174 134 
Other 222 199 164 

Total noninterest expense :ms 373 298 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 
AND MINORITY INTEREST 15:3 168 139 

Minority interest in income 
of consolidated subsidiary l 51 (14) (7) 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 1:38 154 132 
Taxes on income 17 27 21 
NET INCOME s 121 $ 127 $ lll 

See the notes to the Financial Services Group summarized financial statements. 

-.) 
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SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEETS 

Financial Services Group 

At year end 
(in millions) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Mortgage loans held for sale 
Loans receivable, net of allowance 

for loan losses of $113 in 1999 
and $87 in 1998 

Mortgage-backed and other 
securities available-for-sale 

Mortgage-backed and other 
securities held-to-maturity 

Other assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITI ES 
Deposits 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Other borrowings 
Other liabilities 
Stock issued by subsidiary 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

SH AREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

1999 

$ 23;~ 

252 

9,296 

J ,431 

1,061 
LOL18 

s 13,321 

s 9,027 
2A03 

212 
430 
226 

12,298 
L02:3 

s 13,321 

See the notes to the Financial Services Croup summarized financial statements. 

1998 

$ 229 
621 

8,101 

1,071 

1,414 
940 

$ 12 ,376 

$ 7,338 
3,221 

210 
674 
225 

11 ,668 
708 

$ 12 ,376 

SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Financial Services Group 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATIONS 
Net income s l21 $ 127 $ lll 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash: 

Amortization, depreciation and accretion 62 108 43 
Mortgage loans held for sale 369 (183) (99) 
Collections and remittances on loans serviced 

for others, net (251 ) 129 193 
Other 82 (86) (61 ) 

38:3 95 187 

CAS!I PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTMENTS 
Purchases of securiti es available-for-sale (294 ) (208) (121) 
Maturities of securities available-for-sale 279 300 210 
Sales of securities available-for-sale 145 53 844 
Maturities and redemptions of securiti es 

held-to-maturity 351 349 308 
Loans originated or acquired, 

net of principal collected on loans (1,163) (1,852) (1,084) 
Sales of loans 299 16 29 
Acquisitions , net of cash acquired 

of $29 in 1999 (108) (13) 
Capital expenditures (26) (39) (18) 
Other (17) 12 (1 ) 

(534 ) (1,369) 154 

CASH PB.OVIDED BY (USED FOR) FI NANCING 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 808 (36) 128 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 

and short-term borrowings, net (121) 788 (609) 
Addi lions to debt 35 770 411 
Payments of debt (775) (251 ) (204) 
Sale of subsidiary stock l 75 150 
Capital contributions from Parent Company 279 44 25 
Dividends paid to Parent Company (70) (44) (275) 
Other (2) (18) (6) 

155 1,328 (380) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 4 54 (39) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 229 ] 75 214 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $233 $ 229 $ 175 

See the notes to the Financial Services Croup summarizedfinanrial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP 
SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Temple-Inland Financial Services Group (group) summarized financial 
statements include savings bank, mortgage banking, real estate and insurance 
brokerage operations. All material intercompany amounts and transactions 
have been eliminated. Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform 
with current year's classification . These financial statements should be read 
in conjunction with the Temple-Inland Inc. (the company) consolidated 
financial statements. 

Mortgage loans originated and held for sale are carried at the lower of 
cost or es timated market value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are 
recognized in a valuation allowance by charges to income. 

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid net principal balances, less the 
allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans receivable is credited to income as 
earned. The accrual of interest ceases when collection of principal or interest 
becomes doubtful. When interest accrual ceases, uncollected interest 
previously credited to income is reversed. Certain loan fees and direct loan 
origination costs are deferred. These net fees or costs, as well as premiums 
and discounts on loans, are amortized to in come using the interest method 
over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated 
prepayments. Any unamortized loan fees or cos ts, premium s, or discounts 
are taken to income in the event a loan is sold or repaid. 

The allowance for loan losses is increased by charges to income and by the 
portion of the purchase price related to credit risk on bulk purchases of loans, 
and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Management's periodic 
evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on the group's past loan 
loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations 
that may affect the borrowers' ability to repay, estimated value of any 
underlying collateral , and current economic conditions. 

Loans receivable are assigned a risk rating to distinguish levels of credit risk 
and identify higher or unacceptable credit risks and deteriorating loan quality. 
These risk ratings are categorized as pass or criticized grade, with the 
resultant allowance for loan losses based on thi s distinction. Certain loan 
portfolios are considered to be performance based and are graded by 
analyzing performance through assessment of delinquency status. The 
allowance for loan losses is comprised of specific allowances for criticized 
graded loans, general allowances for pass graded loans and an unallocated 
allowance based on analysis of other environmental factors . 

Specific allowances es tablished on the outstanding principal balance of 
criticized graded loans range from 5 percent to 35 percent on Substandard 
classified loans, 36 percent to 70 percent on Doubtful classified loans, and 
100 percent on Loss classified loans. These allowance percentages are based in 
part on estimated cash flows to be received on the loans or estimated market 
values of the underlying collateral. The group uses general allowances for 
pools of loans with relatively similar risks based on management's assessment 
of homogeneous attributes, such as product types, markets, aging and 
collateral. The group uses information on historic trends in delinquencies, 
charge-offs and recoveries to identify unfavorable trends. The analysis 
considers adverse trends in the migration of classifications to be an early 
warning of potential problems that would indicate a need to increase loss 
provisions over historic levels. 

The unalloca ted allowance for inherent loan losses is determin ed based on 
management's assessment of general economic conditions, as well as specific 
eco nomic fa ctors in individual markets. The evaluation of the appropriate 
level of unallocated allowance considers current risk factors that may not be 
refl ected in historical trends used to determine the allowance on criticized 
and pass graded loans. These factors may include inherent delays in obtaining 
information regarding a borrower 's financial condi tion or changes in their 
unique business conditions; the judgmental nature of individual loan 
evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic 
trends; volatility of economic or customer-specific conditions affecting the 
identification and estimation of losses for larger, non-homogeneous loans; 
and the sensitivity of assumptions used to establish general allowances for 
homogeneous groups of loans. 

The group determines the appropriate classification of mortgage-backed 
and other securities at the time of purchase and confirms the designation of 
these securities as of each balance sheet date. Debt securities are classified as 
held-to-maturity and stated at amortized cos t when the group has both the 
intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Otherwise, debt securiti es 
and marketable equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are 
stated at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported 
as a component of shareholders' equity. 

The cost of securities classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale 
is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts by a 
method that approximates the interest method over Lhe estimated Jives of the 
securities. Should any such assets be sold , gains and losses are recognized 
based on the specific-identification method. 
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The operations of Guaranty Federal Bank, F. S.B. (Guaranty) are subject to 
the risk of interest ra te fluctuations to the extent that interest-earning assets 
and interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different times or in 
differing amoun ts. To maintain acceptable levels of interest rate and liquidity 
risk, Guaranty enters into various types of interest rate contracts for purposes 
other than trading. 

The net amount payable or receivable on interes t rate contracts is recorded 
as an adjustment to interest income or expense. Premiums paid for interest 
rate contracts, net of premiums received for those sold, are included in the 
carrying value of the related interest-earning assets or interest-bearing 
liabilities, and amortized as an adjustment to the yield of the designated 
assets or liabilities over the contract periods. 

RE\I I"" 

Real estate consists primarily of land and commercial properties held 
for development and sale, although certain properti es are held for the 
production of income. Interest on indebtedness and property taxes during 
the development period , as well as improvements and other development 
costs, are generally capitalized. The cost of land sales is determined using 
the relative sales value method. Real estate also includes properties acquired 
through loan foreclosure by Guaranty and Temple-Inland Mortgage 
Corporation (TIMC). 

Real estate held for future development and real estate projects that are 
being developed are evaluated for impairment in accordance with the 
recognition and measurement provisions governing long-lived assets to be 
held and used in operations. Real estate projects that are substantially 
completed and ready for their intended use are measured at the lower of 
carrying amount or estimated fair value, less cost to sell , in accordance with 
the provisions governing long-lived assets that are to be disposed of. 

MOHH,\ LO\'\ "-fl{\ I( I BILll I""' 

The group allocates a portion of the cost of originating a mortgage loan to 
the mortgage servicing right based on its fair value relative to the loan as a 
whole. Capitalized mor tgage loan servicing rights are amortized in proportion 
to , and over the period of, estimated net servicing revenues. The fair market 
value of originated mortgage servicing rights is estimated using buyers' quoted 
prices for servicing rights with similar attributes, such as loan type, size, 
escrow and geographic location . Purchased mortgage servicing rights are 
recorded at cost. 

To evaluate possible impairment of mortgage servicing rights, the portfolio 
is periodically stratified based on predominant risk characteristics, and the 
capitalized basis of each stratum is compared to fa ir value. Predominant risk 
characteristics considered include loan type and interest rate. Should the 
capitalized mortgage servicing rights, net, exceed fa ir value, impairment is 
recognized through a valuation allowance. 

Amortization expense and changes to the valuation allowance are included 
in loan origination, marketing and servicing fees, net , in the summarized 
statements of income. 

rm Bu I'\( 0\11 I\ 

The group is included in the consolidated income tax return filed by the 
Parent Company. Under an agreement with the Parent Company, the group 
provides a current income tax provision that takes into account the separate 
taxable income of the group. Deferred income taxes are recorded by 
the group. 

H 

On October 26, 1999, Guaranty signed a definitive agreement to acquire all 
of the outstanding stock of American Finance Group, Inc. (AFG), a company 
engaged in industrial and commercial equipment leasing and financing. At 
December 31 , 1999, AFG had total assets (primarily financing leases, loans 
and equipment under operating leases) of approximately $188 million and 
total liabilities (primarily debt) of approximately $157 million. The 
transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2000 , with an 
anticipated purchase price of approximately $32 million in cash . 

On June 29, 1999, the group acquired all of the outstanding stock of 
HF Bancorp , Inc., the parent company of Hemet Federal Savings & Loan 
Association (Hemet), and merged the operations of Hemet into Guaranty. 
Total assets and liabilities of Hemet at acquisition were approximately 
$1.2 billion (primarily loans and securities) and $1.1 billion (primarily 
deposits), respectively. At closing, the group paid approximately $119 million 
in cash for all of the outstanding stock of HF Bancorp, Inc. The excess of the 
purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired of 
approximately $39 million is being amortized on the straight-line method 
over 25 years. 

On June 11 , 1999, Guaranty, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired 
the assets of Fidelity Funding Finan cial Group, Inc. (Fidelity) for $18 million 
in cash . Fidelity, an asset-based lending operation , had assets (primarily loans) 
of approximately $111 million . The excess of the purchase price over the fair 
value of the identifiable net assets acquired of approximately $18 million is 
being amortized on the straight-line method over 10 years. 

On June 27, 1997, Temple-Inland Inc. acquired all of the outstanding 
stock of California Financial Holding Company, the parent company of 
Stockton Savings Bank, F. S.B. (SSB), and merged the operations of SSB into 
Guaranty. Total assets and habili ties of SSB at acquisition were approximately 
$1.4 billion (primarily loans and securities) and $1.3 billion (primarily 
deposits and FHLB advances), respectively. At closing, Temple-Inland Inc. 
issued approximately 1.6 million shares of common stock valued at 
$96 million and paid approximately $4 7 million in cash . The excess of 
purchase price over the fa ir value of identifiabl e net assets acquired of 
approximately $63 million is being amortized on the straight-line method 
over 25 years. 
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Effective May 31, 1997, TIMC acquired 100 percent of the common stock of 
Knutson Mortgage Corporation , a corporation engaged in mortgage banking 
activities, for approximately $15 million in cash. This transaction increased 
the production branch network by a total of 34 branches and the prin cipal 
balance of the loan servicing portfolio by approximately $6.4 billion. 

The consummated acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase 
method of accounting and , accordingly, the acquired assets and liabilities 
were adjusted to their estimated fair values at the date of the acquisitions. 
The operating results of the consummated acquisitions are included in the 
accompanying summarized financial statements from the acquisition dates. 
The unaudited proforma results of operations, assuming the acquisitions had 
been effected as of the beginning of the appli cable fiscal year, would not have 
been materially different from those reported. 

\01 j, .d111 

The outstanding principal balances of loans receivable consisted 
of the following: 

At year end 
(in millions) 

Real estate mortgage 
Construction and development 
Commercial and business 
Consumer and other 
Premiums, discounts and deferred fees, net 

LESS: 
Allowance for loan losses 

1999 

$ 3,763 
3,253 
1,265 
1,121 

7 
9.409 

( ll:l) 
89,296 

1998 

$ 4 ,105 
2 ,210 

1,031 
827 

15 
8,188 

(87) 
$ 8,101 

Real estate mortgages are primarily single-family adjustable-rate loans 
secured by properties located throughout the United Sta tes, primarily in 
California and Texas. Construction and development loans consist primarily 
of office, multi-family, retail , industrial and assisted living and are 
predominantly located in Texas, California , Florida , Georgia , Colorado, 
Illinois and Arizona. Commercial and business loans include working capital, 
equipment financing, and other business loans primarily in Texas. Consumer 
and other loans include a variety of products and are pr ima rily secured by 
real es tate and automobiles. 

At year end 1999, the gro up had unfunded co mmitments on outstanding 
loans totaling approx imately $4.2 billion . In addition , al year end 1999, 
the group had issued letters of credit totaling approxim ately $105 million. 
The amount to be ultimately fund ed is uncertain . 

Activity in the allowance fo r loan losses was as fo llows: 

For the year 
(in millions) 

Balance, beginn ing of year 
Provision for loan losses 
Additions related to acquisitions 

and bulk purchases of loans 
Charge-offs, net of recoveries 

Balance, end of year 

1999 

s 87 
38 

12 
(24 ) 

SH3 

11 < •t1w1 

1998 

$ 91 

(5) 

$ 87 

1997 

$ 69 
(2) 

30 
(6) 

$ 91 

The amortized cost and fair values of mortgage-backed and other securities 
consis ted of the following: 

At year end J 999 
(in millions) 

AVA ILABLE-FO R-SALE 
Mortgage-backed securiti es: 

FNMA certificates 
FHLMC certifi cates 
GNMA certificates 
Collaterahzed mortgage 

obligations 
Private issuer pass-

through securiti es 

Debt securities: 
U.S. Government 
Corporate 

Equity securiti es, 
primarily Federal Home 
Loan Bank stock 

fl ELD-TO-MATU RITY 
Mortgage-backed securiti es: 

FNMA certifica tes 
FHLMC certificates 
Collateralized mortgage 

obligations 
Private issuer pass­

through securiti es 

Gross 
Amortized Unrealized 

Cos t 

s 963 
84 
96 

120 

12 
L275 

7 
2 

166 
s l.150 

s 617 
125 

131 

158 
$1 ,061 

Gains 

$ 2 
-
-

-

-
2 

-
-

-
$ 2 

s 

$ 

Cross 
Unrealized Fair 

Losses Value 

$ J 5) $ 950 
( I ) 8:l 

- 96 

(:3 ) 117 

(2) 10 
(21 ) L256 

- 7 
2 

166 
s 21 SL131 

s :31) s 616 
6 119 

(6) 125 

(9) H9 
$ \52) $1,009 
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At year end 1998 
(in millions) 

AVAILAB LE-FOR-SALE 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

FNMA certificates 
FHLMC certificates 
Collaterahzed mortgage 

obligations 
Private issuer pass-

through securities 

Debt securities: 
Corporate 

Equity securities, 
primarily Federal Home 
Loan Bank stock 

HELD-TO-MATURITY 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

FNMA certificates 
FHLMC certificates 
Collateralized mortgage 

obligations 
Private issuer pass­

through securities 

Gross 
Amortized Unrealized 

Cost 

$ 752 
2 

120 

15 
889 

3 

176 
$1,068 

$ 782 
158 

184 

290 
$1,414 

Gains 

$ 7 

7 

$ 7 

$ 

$ 

Gross 
Unrealized Fair 

Losses Value 

$ (2) $ 757 
2 

120 

(2) 13 
(4) 892 

3 

176 
$ (4) $ 1,071 

$ (18) $ 764 
(4) 154 

(6) 178 

(8) 282 
$ (36) $ 1,378 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value by maturity of mortgage­
backed and other securities are shown in the followin g table. Securiti es are 
classified according to their contractual maturities without consideration of 
principal amortization, potential prepayments or call options. Accordingly, 
actual maturities may differ from contractual maturiti es. 

Amorlizcd Fair 
At year end 1999 Cost \'alue 
(in millions) 

Due in 1 year or less s l s l 
Due after 1 year through 5 years 5 :3 
Due after 5 years through 10 years 147 ] .f3 
Due after 10 years 2.358 2.293 

Total mortgage-backed and other securities $2,511 $ 2.41W 

The mortgage loans underlying mortgage-backed securities have adjustable 
interest rates and generally have contractual maturiti es ranging from 
15 to 40 years, with principal and interest installments due monthly. 
The actual maturities of mortgage-backed securities may differ from the 
contractual maturities of the underlying loans because issuers or mortgagors 
may have the right to call or prepay their securities or loans. 

Certain mortgage-backed and other securities are guaranteed directly or 
indirectly by the U.S. government or its agencies. Other mortgage-backed 
securities that are not guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies are 
senior subordinated securities considered investment grade quality by third­
party rating agencies. The collateral underlying these securities is primarily 
residential properties located in California. 

Guaranty securitized $217 million , $164 million and $962 million of 
mortgage loans previously held in the loan portfolio during 1999, 1998 
and 1997, respectively. The transfer Lo mortgage-backed securities was 
recorded at the carrying value of the mortgage loans at the time of 
securitization. The group held $601 million and $657 million in such 
securities at year end 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

0 l>c·po ... 11 ... 

Deposits co nsisted of the following: 

1999 
Awrag<' 

Slaled 

1998 
Average 

Stated 
Ra le Amount Rate Amount 

(in millions) 

Noninterest bearing demand $ 329 
Interest bearing demand 
Savings deposits 
Time deposits 

3.46',%', 
1.96% 
5.:3690 

2.035 
214 

6.449 
$9.027 

$ 152 
2.08% 1,135 
2.21% 207 
5.39% 5,844 

$ 7,338 

Scheduled maturities of time deposits at year end 1999 are as follows: 

$100.000 Less Than 
or More $100.000 Total 

(in millions) 

3 months or less $ 280 Sl,280 SI.560 
Over 3 months through 6 months 242 L2M 1,506 
Over 6 months through 12 months 230 1.162 l,392 
Over 12 months 355 1.636 1,991 

$1,107 $5,342 $6,449 

At year end 1999, time deposits maturity dates were as follows (in millions): 
2000 - $4,458; 2001 - $1,452 ; 2002 - $360; 2003 - $107; 2004 - $68 ; 
2005 and thereafter - $4. 
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Securities sold under repurchase agreements were delivered to 
brokers/ dealers who retained such securities as collateral for the borrowings 
and have agreed to resell the same securities back to Guaranty at the 
maturities of the agreements. The agreements generally mature within 
30 days. 

Information concerning borrowings under repurchase agreements is 
summarized as follows: 

For the year: 1999 
(in millions) 

Average daily balance 8 112 $ 

1998 

349 
Maximum month-end balance $ 223 $1,255 

There were no securities sold under repurchase agreements outstanding at 
year end 1999 or 1998. 

Pursuant to collateral agreements with the Federal Hom e Loan Bank of 
Dallas (FHLB), advances are secured by a blanket floating lien on Guaranty's 
assets and by securities on deposit at the FHLB. The weighted average interest 
rate of FHLB advances was 5.75 percent and 5.09 percent at year end 1999 
and 1998, respectively. At year end 1999, the advances had maturity dates as 
follows (in millions): 2000 - $2,276; 2001 - $115; and 2003 - $12 . 

)\\ 111 

Other borrowings, which represent borrowings of non-savings bank entities, 
consisted of the following: 

At year end 
(in millions) 

Long-term debt with an average rate of 
6.75% and 7.47% during 1999 and 1998, 
respectively, due through 2001 

Long-term debt at various rates which 
approximate prime, secured primarily 
by real es tate 

1999 1998 

$175 $170 

37 40 
$212 $210 

At year end 1999, a non-savings bank subsidiary had a $210 million credit 
facility that expires in 2001 , with $35 million remaining unused. 

At year end 1999, maturities of other borrowings are as follows (in millions): 
2000 - $2; 2001 - $176; 2002 - $2; 2003 - $1; 2004 - $1; 2005 and 
thereafter - $30. 

In May 1997, Guaranty Preferred Capital Corporation (GPCC), a subsidiary 
of Guaranty, issued 150,000 shares of noncumulative floating-rate preferred 
stock, with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. GPCC is a real estate 
investment trust (REIT) established for the purpose of acquiring, holding and 
managing real estate mortgage assets. Dividends on preferred stock are 
noncumulative and are payable when declared. Within 10 years after issuance, 
the preferred stock may be redeemed for cash at the option of GPCC, in whole 
or in part, at a redemption price of $1,000 per share. The preferred stock is 
convertible to Guaranty preferred stock upon the occurrence of certain 
regulatory events. GPCC issued an additional $75 million of noncumulative 
floating-rate preferred stock in May 1998. 

The group services mortgage loans that are owned primarily by 
independent investors. The group serviced approximately 241 ,400 and 
256,300 mortgage loans aggregating $22 .2 billion and $22.9 billion as 
of year end 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

The group is required to advance from group funds, escrow and foreclosure 
costs on loans that it servi ces. The majority of these advances are recoverable, 
except for certain amounts for loans serviced for GNMA. A reserve has been 
es tablished for unrecoverabl e advances. Market risk is assumed related to 
disposing of certain foreclosed VA loans. No significant losses were incurred 
during 1999, 1998 or 1997 in connection with this ri sk. 

Capitalized mortgage loan servicing rights, net of accumulated 
amortization, were as follows: 

Purchased Originated 
Loan Loan 

Servicing Servicing 
For the year I 999 Rights Rights 
(in millions) 

Balance, beginning of year 8142 s 89 
Additions 42 .35 
Amortization expense (29) (20) 
Sales - I J ) 

Subtotal 8155 s 11:~ 
Valuation allowance 
Balance, end of year 

For the year 1998 
(in millions) 

Balance, beginning of year $ 159 $ 42 
Additions 47 71 
Amortization expense (40) (1 6) 
Sales (24) (8) 

Subtotal $ 142 $ 89 
Valuation allowance 
Balance, end of year 

Total 

8 231 
97 
d9) 
(J 1) 

268 
(I ) 

$267 

$ 201 
118 
(56) 
(32) 
231 
(17) 

$ 214 
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Amortization expense related to mortgage loan servicing rights totaled 
$49 million, $56 million and $22 million for 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. The valuation allowance was increased $17 million in 1998 
by a charge to operations and reduced $16 million in 1999 by a credit to 
operations. There was no other activity in the valuation allowance during 
1999, 1998 or 1997. 

During 1998, the group recognized a $28 million gain in connection with 
the sale of servicing rights on mortgage loans with approximately $4.5 billion 
in outstanding principal balance, $1.3 billion of which was not transferred 
until 1999. 

The estimated fair value of the capitalized mortgage servicing rights at 
year end 1999 was approximately $329 million. Fair value was determined 
utilizing market-driven assumptions for prepayment speeds, discount rates 
and other variables. 

\Oii 

At year end 1998, Guaranty was a party to interest rate floors with a 
notional amount of $850 million and interest rate collars with a notional 
amount of $850 million . 

The interes t rate floor agreements generated interest payments to 
Guaranty as the variable rate based on various Constant Maturity Swap (CMS) 
indices fell below the average strike rate of 5.25 percent. The interest rate 
collar agreements incorporated a floor from which Guaranty received 
payments as the CMS indices fell below the average strike rate of 5.02 percent 
and a cap that required Guaranty to pay as the CMS indices exceeded the 
average strike rate of 5.60 percent. These agreements matured in 1999 
and were not renewed. 

Guaranty is also a party to various interest rate corridor agreements to 
reduce the impact of increases in interest rates on its investments in 
adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities that have lifetime interest rate 
caps. Under these agreements, with notional amounts totaling $291 million 
and $319 million at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, Guaranty 
simultaneously purchased and sold caps whereby it receives interest if the 
variable rate based on FHLB Eleventh District Cost of Funds (EDCOF) Index 
(4. 77 percent at year end 1999) exceeds an average strike rate of 8.81 percent 
and pays interest if the same variable rate exceeds a strike rate of 11.75 percent. 
These agreements mature through 2003. 

Guaranty is also a party to an interes t rate cap agreement to reduce the 
impact of interest rate increases on certain adjustable rate investments wi th 
lifetime caps. Under this agreement, with a notional amount of $29 million, 
Guaranty would receive payments if the EDCOF exceeds the strike rate of 
10 percent. This agreement matures in 2004. 

The amounts subject to credit risk are the streams of payments 
receivable by Guaranty under the terms of the contracts and not the 
notional amounts used to express the principal amounts underlying these 
transactions. Guaranty minimizes its exposure to credit risk by entering 
into contracts with major U.S. securiti es firms. 

The group leases equipmen t and facilities under various operating lease 
agreements. Future minimum rental payments, net of related sublease 
income and exclusive of related expenses, under non-cancelable operating 
leases with a remaining term in excess of one year are as follows (in millions): 
2000 - $11 ; 2001 - $7; 2002 - $6; 2003 - $5; 2004 - $4; 2005 and 
thereafter - $8. 

Total rent expense under these lease agreements was $14 million, 
$15 million and $14 million for 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

At year end 1999, the group had commitments to originate or purchase 
loans totaling approximately $1.1 billion and commitments to sell loans of 
approximately $298 million. To the ex tent mortgage loans at the appropriate 
rates are not available to fulfill the sales commitmen ts, the group is subject to 
market risk resulting from interest rate fluctuations. 

Guaranty is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered 
by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct 
material effect on Guaranty's financial statements. 

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action, Guaranty must meet specific capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of Guaranty's assets, liabilities and certain 
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. 
Guaranty's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative 
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other 
factors. The payment of dividends from Guaranty is subject to proper 
regulatory notification. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capi tal adequacy 
require Guaranty to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the 
following table) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 
1 capital to adjusted tangible assets. Management believes, at year end 1999, 
Guaranty met all its capital adequacy requirements. 
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At year end 1999, the most recent notification from regulators categorized 
Guaranty as "well capitalized" under the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action. To be categorized as "well capitalized," Guaranty musl 
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 (Core) risk-based and Tier 1 (Core) 
leverage capital ratios as set forth in the table. Guaranty's actual capital 
amounts and ratios are also presented. No amounts were deducted from 
capital for interest-rate risk at year end 1999 or 1998. 

Actual 
Amount Ratio 

(dollars in millions) 

At year end 1999: 

Total Risk-Based Ratio 
(Risk-based capital I Total risk-weight assets) $Ll39 10.33% 

Tier l (Core) Risk-Based Ratio 
(Core capital I Total risk-weight assets) $1,058 9.60% 

Tier l (Core) Leverage Ratio 
(Core capital I Adjusted tangible assets) s] .058 8.22% 

Tangible Ratio 
(Tangible equity I Tangible assets) $1 .058 8.22°0 

At year end 1998: 

Total Ri sk-Based Rati o 
(Risk-based capital I Total risk-weight assets) $ 829 10.17% 

Tier l (Core) Risk-Based Ratio 
(Core capital I Total risk-weight assets) $ 756 9.27% 

Tier 1 (Core) Leverage Ratio 
(Core capital I Adjusted tangible assets) $ 756 6.31 % 

Tangible Ratio 
(Tangible equity I Tangible assels) $ 756 6.31 % 

For Capital 
Adequacy Purposes 

Amount Ratio 

2$ 882 2 8.00% 

2$ 141 2 1.00% 

28 515 2 l.00°0 

28 257 2 2.00% 

?'.$ 652 ?'. 8.00% 

2$ 326 2 4. 00% 

?'.$ 479 ?'. 4. 00% 

?'.$ 240 ?'. 2.00% 

To Be Well 
Capitalized 

Under Prompt 
Corrective 

Action Provisions 
Amount Ratio 

2$ L 102 2 10.00% 

2$ 661 2 6.00~o 

2S 643 2 5.00°0 

'\'ol applicable 

?'.$ 815 ?'. 10.00% 

2$ 489 2 6.00% 

2$ 599 ?'. 5.00% 

Not applicable 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Temple-Inland Inc. and Subsidiaries 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions, except p er slw.re data) 

REVENUES 
Manufacturing s 2.566 $ 2 ,255 $ 2 ,311 
Financial Services 1.116 1,036 923 

:3.682 3,291 3,234 
COSTS AND EXPENSES 

Manufacturing 2.:319 2,132 2.259 
Special charge - 47 
Financial Services 978 882 79] 

3.297 3,061 3,050 
OPERATING INCOME 385 230 184 

Parent Company 
interes t - net 9:51 (78) (82) 

Other 16 6 6 
INCOME FH.OM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES 306 158 108 
Taxes on income JI;) 70 49 

INCOME FROM 
CONTINU ING 0PEHATIONS 191 88 59 

Discontinued operations (92 ) (21) (8) 

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT 
OF ACCOUNTING CJ IANGE 99 67 51 

Cumulative effect of 
accounting change - (3) 

NET INCOME s 99 $ 64 $ 51 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Basic: 

Income from 
continuing operations s :3A5 $ 1.60 $ l.05 

Discon tinued operations ( l.66) (0.38) (0.14) 
Cumulative effect of 

accounting change - (0.06) 
NET INCOME s l.79 $ l.16 $ 0.91 

Diluted: 
Income from 

con tinuing opera tions s 3.n $ 1.59 $ 1.04 
Discontinued operations (J.6:5 (0 .38) (0.14) 
Cumulative effect of 

accounting change - (0.06) 
NET INCOME $ I. 78 $ l.1 5 $ 0.90 

See the noles Lo the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Temple-Inland Inc. and Subsidiaries 

For the ear 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

CASH PROV IDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATI ONS 
Net incom e $ 99 $ 64 $ 51 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash : 

Loss on disposal of disconlinued operations 77 
Special charge - 47 
Cumulative effect of accounting change - 3 
Depreciation and depletion 217 206 200 
Amortization of goodwill 8 7 6 
Def erred taxes 111 18 20 
Amortization and accretion on financial instruments io 90 26 
Mortgage loans held for sale 369 (183) (99) 
Receivables (74) (1 1) 13 
Inventories ( 1) 2 (1 5) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12 (1 6) (12) 
Collections and remittances on loans serviced for others, net (251 ) 129 193 
Change in net assets of discontinued operations 23 63 34 
Other 70 (78) (79) 

630 341 338 
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTMENTS 

Capital expenditures on property, plant and equipment (204) (196) (231) 
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 576 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 55 28 53 
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (291J.) (208) (121) 
Maturities of securities available-for-sale 279 300 210 
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sal e 145 53 844 
Maturities and redemptions of securities h eld-to-maturity 351 349 308 
Loans originated or acquired , net of principal collected on loans (Ll63) (1 ,852) (1,084) 
Proceeds from sale of loans 299 16 29 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired , and joint ventures (156) (121) (44) 
Other (17) (10) (2) 

(129) (1,641) (38) 
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) Fl NANCING 

Additions to debt ;347 1,089 447 
Paym ents of debt (1 ,335) (426) (329) 
Securities sold under repurchase agreem en ts and short-term borrowings, net (J 21 ) 788 (609) 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 808 (36) 128 
Purchase of stock for treasury (100) (48) (59) 
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (71 ) (71 ) (71 ) 
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary preferred stock l 75 150 
Other 10 (15) 3 

(!61 ) 1,356 (340) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equival ents io 56 (40) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 244 188 228 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 281 $ 244 $ 188 

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS 

Temple-Inland Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Parent Financial Parent Financial 
At year end 1999 Company Services Consolidated At year end 1998 Company Services Consolidated 
(in millions) (in millions) 

ASSETS ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 51 s 23:~ 8 28·l Cash and cash equivalents $ 15 $ 229 $ 244 
Mortgage loans held for sale - 252 252 Mortgage loans held for sale 621 621 
Loans receivable - 9.296 9,296 Loans receivable 8,101 8,101 
Mortgage-backed and other Mortgage-backed and other 

securities available-for-sale - 1.4:-H 1.431 securities available-for-sale 1,071 1,071 
Mortgage-backed and other Mortgage-backed and other 

securities held-to-maturity - 1,061 1,061 securities held-to-maturity 1,414 1,414 
Trade and other receivables :328 - ;319 Trade and other receivables 264 257 
Inventories 287 - 287 Inventories 283 283 
Property and equipment 2.052 1'15 2.197 Net assets of 
Other assets 200 90:3 1.059 discontinued operations 677 677 
Investment in Property and equipm ent 2,109 129 2,238 
Financial Services 1.02:3 - - Other assets 188 811 962 

Investment in 
Financial Services 708 

TOTAL ASSETS 8 3,941 $13,32 l 816.186 TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,244 $ 12 ,376 $ 15,868 

LlABI LITIES LIABILITIES 
Deposits $ $ 9,027 s 9.027 Deposits $ $ 7,338 $ 7,338 
Federal Home Loan Federal Home Loan 

Bank advances - 2.403 2,40:~ Bank advances 3,221 3,221 
Other liabilities 392 HO 799 Other liabilities 334 674 988 
Long-term debt 1,253 212 I .-165 Long-tem1 debt 1,501 210 1,711 
Deferred income taxes 226 - 196 Deferred income taxes 266 242 
Postretirement benefits 143 - l ·1:3 Postretirement benefits 145 145 
Stock issued by subsidiary 226 226 Stock issued by subsidiary 225 225 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8 2.0M s 12,298 I t.,259 TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,246 $ 11 ,668 13 ,870 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Preferred stock - par value $1 per share: Preferred stock - par value $1 per share: 

authorized 25,000,000 shares; none issued - authorized 25 ,000 ,000 shares; none issued 
Common stock - par value $1 per share: Common stock - par value $1 per share: 

authorized 200,000,000 shares; issued 61 ,389,552 shares 61 authorized 200 ,000,000 shares; issued 61 ,389,552 shares 61 
Additional paid-in capital 364 Additional paid-in capital 357 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (31 ) Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (l 7) 
Retained earnings J.838 Retained earnings 1,810 

2,232 2,211 
Cost of shares held in the treasury: 7,177 ,592 shares (:305) Cost of shares held in the treasury: 5,785,139 shares (213) 

TOTAL Sll AREHOLDEHS' EQUITY l.927 TOTAL STIAHEllOLDERS' EQUITY 1,998 
TOTA L LIAB ILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $16,186 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $15,868 

See the notes to the consolidated financial stalemenls. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Temp le-Inland Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Accumulated 
Other 

Common Paid-in Comprehensive H.etained Treasury 
Stock Ca12ital Income Earnings Stock Total 

(in millions) 

B ALANCE AT Y EA R E ND 1996 $ 61 $ 305 $ (24) $1,837 $ (1 64) $ 2,01 5 
Comprehensive Income 

Net income 51 51 
Other comprehensive income: 

Unrealized gains on securities 4 4 
Total comprehensive income 55 

Dividends paid on common stock - $1.28 per share (71 ) (71 ) 
Stock issued for acquisition - 1,613 ,546 shares 48 48 96 
Stock issued for stock plans - 253 ,075 shares 3 6 9 
Stock acquired for treasury - 994 ,830 shares (59) (59) 
B ALANCE AT Y EA R E ND 1997 61 356 (20) 1,81 7 (1 69) 2,045 

Comprehensive Income 
Net income 64 64 
Other comprehensive income: 

Unrealized gains on securities 5 5 
Minimum pension liability (2) (2) 

Total comprehensive income 67 
Dividends paid on common stock - $1.28 per share (71 ) (71 ) 

Stock issued for stock plans - 134,430 shares 1 4 5 
Stock acquired for treasury - 850,558 shares (48) (48) 
B ALANCE AT Y EA H E ND 1998 61 357 (1 7) 1,810 (213) 1,998 

Comprehensive Income 
Net income 99 99 
Other comprehensive income: 

Unrealized gain s on securities (15) (15) 
Foreign currency translation adjustm ent 1 1 

Total comprehensive income 85 
Dividends paid on common stock - $1.28 per share (71 ) (71) 
Stock issued for stock plans - 256,599 shares 7 8 15 
Stock acquired fo r treasury - 1,649 ,052 shares (100) (100) 
lhL\ \CE \T 't:\H E\D l 999 s 61 s :~61 $ :H s 1,838 s 305) s 1.927 

See the notes lo the consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated finan cial statements include the accounts of 
Temple-inland Inc. and all subsidiaries in which the company has more than 
a 50 percent equity ownership. Investments in joint ventures and other 
subsidiaries in which the compan y has between a 20 percent and a 50 percent 
equity ownership are refl ected using the equity method. However, because 
certain assets and liabilities are in separate corporate entities, the consolidated 
assets are not available to satisfy all consolidated liabilities. All material 
intercompany amounts and tran sactions have been eliminated. Certain 
amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year's classification. 

The preparation of the consolidated finan cial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
es timates and assumption s. These estimates and assumptions affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes, 
including disclosures related to co ntingencies. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. 

Included as an integral part of the consolidated financial statements are 
separate summarized financial statements and notes for the company's 
primary business groups, as well as the significant accounting policies 
unique to each group. 

\ ... \It C \'II I Ol \ 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand , amounts due from 
banks, commercial paper, agen cy discount notes, federal funds sold , and other 
short-term liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less. 

... IU \ Ow I\ Ir P I It l l:HI \(ii 

Balance sheets of the company's international operations where the 
fun ctional currency is other than the U.S. dollar are translated into 
U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates. Adjustments resulting from finan cial 
statement translation are reported as a co mponent of shareholders' equity. 
For other international operations where the functional currency is the 
U.S. dollar, inventories, and property, plant and equipment are translated al 
the historical rate of exchange, while other assets and liabilities are translated 
at year-end exchange rates. Translation adjustments for these operations are 
included in earnings and are not material. 

Income and expense items are translated into U.S. dollars at average rates 
of exchange prevailing during the year. Gains and losses resulting from foreign 
currency transactions are included in earnings and are nol material. 

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used fo r tax purposes, comp uted using current tax rates. 

The company uses the intrinsic value method in accounting for its stock­
based employee compensation plans. 

Impairment losses are recognized on assets held for use when indicators 
of impairment are present and the estimated undiscounted cash flows are 
not sufficient to recover the assets' carrying amount. Assets held for disposal 
are recorded at the lower of carrying value or estimated fair value, less costs 
to sell. 

11 

The company capitalizes purchased software costs, as well as the direct 
costs, both internal and external , associated with software developed for 
internal use. These costs are amortized using Lhe straight-line method over 
es timated useful lives of three Lo seven years. 

\\ \ 0 1·~10 

The company will be required to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133 , Accounting for Derivatives Instruments and Hedging 
Activities, beginning 2001. This statement will require derivative positions 
to be recognized in the balance sheet at fair value. The company has not 
yet determined the effect on earnings or financial position of adopting 
this statement. 
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Taxes on income from continuing opera tions con sisted of the following: 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

CURRENT TAX PROVISION: 
U.S. Federal s 89 $ 38 $ 24 
State and other 12 10 3 

101 48 27 

DEFERRED TAX PROVISION: 
U.S. Federal 14 21 17 
State and other - 1 5 

14 22 22 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES s 115 $ 70 $ 49 

Earnings or losses from continuing opera tions consisted of the following: 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

EARNINGS (LOSSES): 

U.S. s 311 $ 189 $ 117 
Non-U.S . (5 ) (31 ) (9) 

s 306 $ 158 $ 108 

The differen ces between the consolidated effective incom e tax rate and the 

federal statutory incom e tax rate include the foll owing: 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

Taxes on income 
at s tatutory rate s 107 $ 56 $ 38 

State, n et of federal ben efit 8 6 5 
Foreign losses and 

taxes not ben efited 3 6 3 
Sale of fore ign subsidiary (7) 
Goodwill 2 L 4 
Other 2 1 (1) 

$ l15 $ 70 $ 49 

Significant components of the company's consolidated deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are as follows: 

At year end 1999 1998 
(in millions) 

DEFERRED TAX LIABlLITI ES: 
Depreciation s25,i, $ 400 
Timber and timberlands ;37 40 
Pensions 26 28 
Other ;34 69 

Total deferred tax liabilities :l5l 537 
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS: 

Alternative minimum tax credits 185 293 
Net operating Joss carryforwards 12 31 
OPEB obligations 56 56 
Other 56 74 

Total deferred tax assets :rn9 454 
VALUATION ALLOWANCE 154 (159) 

Net deferred tax liability s 196 $ 242 

The valuation allowance represents accruals for deductions that are 
uncertain and accordingly have not been recognized for financial reporting 

purposes. The decrease in the valuation allowance is primarily the result of 
the sale of a foreign subsidiary. 

Current incom e tax paym ents, n et of refunds received , were $52 million , 

$39 million and $21 million during 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

The company has domestic n et operating loss carryforwards of $3 mil li on 

that expire in 2005. In addition , the company has foreign n et operating loss 
carryforwards of $16 million that expire from the year 2005 through the year 

2010, and $16 million that may be carried forward indefinitely. Alte rnative 
minimum tax credits may be carried forward indefinitely. In accordance with 

generally accepted acco unting principles, the co mpany has not provided 
deferred taxes on approximately $31 million of pre-1988 tax bad debt reserves. 

As a result of the sale of a foreign subsidiary in 1999, the company realized 

a $7 million one-time decrease in tax expense. 

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has co ncluded its examination of the 
company's consolidated tax returns for Lhe years 1987 through 1992. As a 

result of this examination , the company has agreed to pay approximately 
$36 million in taxes and interest for those years, of which $19 million was 

paid in 1999. The IRS is currently examining th e company's consolidated 
tax re turns for th e years 1993 through 1996. The resolution of these 
examinations is n ot expected to have a material adverse impact on the 

company's financial condition or results of operation s. 
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The carrying amounts and the estimated fair values of financial 
instruments were as follows: 

At year end 
(in millions) 

FI NANCIAL ASSETS : 

Loans receivable 
Mortgage-backed and 

other securities 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 

Deposits 
FHLB advances 
Total debt 

Carryin~ 

Amount 

$ 9,296 

2A92 

9.027 
2-40:3 
] , J.66 

OFF-BALA NCE-SHEET INSTRUMENTS: 

Interest rate contracts 
Commitments to extend credit 

1999 

Fair Carrying 
\alue Amount 

$ 9,243 $ 8,101 

2A40 2,485 

3.937 7,338 
2A03 3,221 
1_,i,1,3 1,713 

2 
2 

1998 

Fair 
Value 

$ 8,126 

2,448 

7,369 
3,223 
1,769 

(5) 

Differences between fair value and carrying amounts are primarily due to 
instruments that provide fixed interest rates or contain fixed interest rate 
elements. Inherently, such instruments are subject to fluctuations in fair value 
due to subsequent movements in interest rates. The fair value of cash and 
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables, securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase, and mortgage loans held for sale 
consistently approximate the carrying amount due to their short-term nature 
and are excluded from the above table. The fair value of mortgage-backed and 
other securities and off-balance-sheet instruments are based on quoted 
market prices. Other financial instruments are valued using discounted cash 
flows. The discount rates used represent current rates for similar instruments. 

The Parent Company has guaranteed certain joint venture obligations 
principally related to variable-rate debt instruments at year end 1999. 
It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these guarantees. 
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The company has a Shareholder Rights Plan in which one-half of a 
preferred stock purchase right (Right) was declared as a dividend for each 
common share outstanding. Each Ri ght entitl es shareholders to purchase, 
under certain conditions, one one-hundredth of a share of newly issued 
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $200. 
Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial 
ownership of 20 percent or more of the company's common shares or 
commences a tender or exchange offer, upon consummation of which such 
person or group would beneficially own 25 percent or more of the co mpany's 
common shares. The company will generall y be entitled to redeem the Rights 
at $0.01 per Ri ght at any time until the tenth business day following public 
announcement that a 20 percent position has been acquired. The Ri ghts will 
expire on February 20, 2009. 

I ., r llrtfl1n "( r ~. • • , 111 u 1 ,, " 

The company has pension plans covering substantially all employees. 
Plans covering salaried and nonunion hourly employees provide benefits 
based on compensation and years of service, while union hourly plans are 
based on nego tiated benefits and years of service. The company's policy is 
to fund amounts on an actuarial basis to accumulate assets sufficient to 
meet the benefits to be paid in accordance with the requirements of 
ERISA. Contributions to the plans are made to trusts for the benefit of 
plan participants. 

The company provid es medical and insurance benefits Lo certain eligible 
salaried and hourly employees who reach retirement age while employed by 
the company. 

The change in benefit obligation , plan assets and the funded status of 
employee benefit plans follows: 

Pension Postretiremen L 
Benefits Benefits 

At year end 1999 1998 1999 1998 
(in millions) 

Benefit obligation at 
beginning of year s 597 $ 507 s 13;~ $ 11 5 

Service cost 17 15 ;3 3 
Interest cost 39 37 8 8 
Change in assumptions (50) 15 
Plan amendments 3 2 (2) 
Actuarial (gain) loss 4 44 (21) 12 
Termination benefits - 6 - ] 

Benefits paid (28) (29) (ll) (7) 
Retiree contributions 
Benefit obligation at end 

of year s 582 $ 597 s Ill $ 133 

Fair value of plan assets 
at beginning of year $ 616 $ 628 $ - $ 

Ac tual return 122 15 
Benefits paid (28\ (28) 
Contributions J 
Fair value of plan assets 
at end of year s 711 $ 616 s - $ 

Funded status $ 129 $ 19 s ( lJl $ (133) 
Unrecognized net loss (gain) (69) 4.1 (24) (3) 
Prior service costs not yet 

recognized 3 3 (8 \ (9) 
Unrecognized net transition 

obligation (asset) (4 ; (8) 
Additional minimum li ability O' (5) 
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost s 57 $ 50 8(14:3) $ (145) 

The net prepaid benefit cost of $57 million at year end 1999 is compri sed 
of pension plans with prepaid benefit cost totaling $78 million and accrued 
benefit liability totaling $21 million . Amounts applicable to the company's 
pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets 
are as follows: 

At year end 
(in mill ions) 

Projected benefit obliga tion 
Accumulated benefit obliga ti on 
Fair value of plan assets 

1999 

s 16 
s 11 
s 

1998 

$236 
$221 
$202 
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SignificanL assumplions used for the employee benefit plans follow: 

Pension Benefils Postretirement Benefits 
For the year 1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997 

Weighted average assumptions: 
Discounl rale 7.50% 6.75% 7.50% 7.50°0 6.75% 7.50% 
Expecled long-term rate of return 9.00°0 9.00% 9.00% 
Rale of co mpensation increase 4. 75°0 4.00% 4.75% 

For measurement purposes, an 8.5 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2000. The rale was 
assumed to decrease gradually to 6.0 percent for 2010 and remain at that level thereafter. 

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) for pension and postretirement plans include the following: 

For the year 1999 
Pension Benefits 

1998 1997 1999 
Postretirement Benefits 

1998 1997 
(in millions) 

Cl-IAHGES (CHEDITS) 

Service cost - benefits 
earned during the period 

Interes t cost on projected benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 

817 $ 15 

39 37 
(54 ; (56) 

$ 14 s 3 $ 3 $ 3 

36 8 8 8 
(47) 

Net amortization and deferral (:-~ ) (5) (5) (I ) (1 ) (l ) 

Net periodic benefit cost (credit)a s (1 ) $ (9) $ (2) S IO $ 10 $ 10 

arn addition to the above, in 1999 the company rPcognized an additional $4 million credit relating to pension benefits and a $2 million credil relating to postretirement benejilsfor curtailments resulting from 
the sale of the bleached paperboard operation. In 1998. the company recognized an additional $3 million credit relating to pension ben~fits and a $ I million crPdit re/a ling to postretirement benefit s fo r 
curlailmenls resulling from employee terminations . 

Assumed health care cos t trend rales have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement benefits. A one percentage point change in 
assumed health care cos t trend rates would have the following effec ls: 

(in millions) 

Effect on total of service and 
interest cost components in 1999 

Effect on postretirement benefit 
obligation at year end 1999 

1 Percentage 
Point In crease 

$ l 

$ 10 

1 Percentage 
Point Decrease 

$ (l ) 

$ (8) 
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The company has established stock option plans for key employees and 
directors. The plans provide for the gran ting of nonqualified stock options 
and/ or incentive stock options and, prior to 1994, the plans permitted the 
grant of stock appreciation rights with all or part of any options so granted. 
Options granted after 1995 have primaril y a 10-year term and become 
exercisable in steps from one to five years. 

A summary of stock option activity follows: 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 

Wrightcd Weighted Wrighted 
A\eragr Avcragr Avr ragr 
l ~xe rc i sc Exrrcisc Exerr isr 

Option s Price Op tions Price Op tions Prier 
(shares in thousands) 

Outstanding beginning 
of year 1.892 s 51 1,430 $47 1,626 $45 

Granted 15 5 6J 654 56 201 56 
Exercised 315 47 (139) 38 (303) 41 
Forfeited (58) 5;3 (53) 50 (94) 50 

Outstanding 
end of year 1.9H $53 1,892 $ 51 1,430 $47 

Weighted average 
fair value of options 
granted during the year 82:3.06 $17.68 $18.24 

Options exercisable at year end were (in thousands): 1999 - 691 ; 
1998 - 737; and 1997 - 658. The weighted average exercise price for 
options exercisable was $49 per share and $48 per share for year end 1999 
and 1998, respectively. Exercise prices for options outstanding at year end 
1999 range from $12 to $75. The weighted average remaining contractual life 
of these options is eight years. An additional 1,727,156 and 2,182,000 shares 
of common stock were available for grants at year end 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. A restri cted stock plan also provides for a maximum of 
300,000 shares of restricted common stock Lo be reserved for awards. 
At year end 1999, awards of 111 ,342 shares of res tri cted common stock 
were outstanding. 

The fair value of the options granted in 1999, 1998 and 1997 was 
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 
with the following assumptions: 

For the year 1999 1998 1997 
Expected dividend yield 2.0°0 2.0% 2.1% 
Expected stock price 

volatility 29. f Oo 28.7% 27.3% 
Risk-free interest rate 6.8°0 4.8% 5.6% 
Expected life of options 8.0 ~<'ar:-. 7.0 years 8.0 years 

Assuming that the company had accounted for its employee stock options 
using the fair value method and amortized such to expense over the op tions' 
vesting period, proforma net income and diluted earnings per share would 
have been $96 million and $1.73 per diluted share in 1999; $62 million and 
$1. 10 per diluted share in 1998; and $49 million and $0.87 per diluted share 
in 1997. The pro forma disclosures may not be indica tive of future amounts 
due to changes in subjective input assumptions and because the options vest 
over several years with additional future option grants expected. 

Numerators and denominators used in computing earnings per share 
are as follows: 

For the year 
(in millions) 

Numera tor for basic and 
diluted earnings per share: 

Income from continuing 
operations 

Discontinued operations 
Cumulati ve effect of 
accounting change 

Net income 
Denominator for basic 

earnings per share: 
Weighted average 

shares outstanding 
Dilutive effect of 

stock options 
Denominator for diluted 

earnings per share 

1999 

s 191 
92 ) 

s 99 

55.6 

0.2 

.)5.8 

1998 

$ 88 
(21) 

(3) 

$ 64 

55.8 

0.1 

55.9 

1997 

$ 59 
(8) 

$ 51 

56.0 

0.2 

56.2 
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The components of other comprehensive income are as follows: 

Unrealizr d 

Currenc) Cains on M in imum 

Transl a lion Avai lable-for- Pension 

Adjuslmr nts Sale SeC'uril iPs Liabili ty Total 

(in mi llions) 

Balance at year end 1996 $ (1 7) $ (7) $ $ (24) 

Unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities 7 7 

Deferred taxes relating to 
unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities (3) (3) 

Balance at year end 1997 (17) (3) (20) 

Unrealized gains on available-
for- sale securities 8 8 

Deferred taxes relating to 
unrealized gains on available-
for- sale securities (3) (3) 

Minimum pension liability (4) (4) 

Deferred taxes relating to 
minimum pension liability 2 2 

Balance at year end 1998 (17) 2 (2) (17) 
Unrealized gains on available-

for-sale securities (22) (22) 

Deferred taxes relating to 
unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities 7 7 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 1 

Balance at ~ear end 1 999 $(16) S(J :~ ) $ 2 ) S(:m 

There are pending against the company and its subsidiaries lawsuits, claims 
and environmental matters arising in the regular course of business. 

In the opinion of management, recoveries, if any, by plaintiffs or claimants 
that may result from the foregoing litigation and claims will not have a 
material adverse effect on its operations or financial position in relation to 
the consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries. 

The company has three reportable segments: paper, building products and 
financial services. The paper segment manufactures corruga ted packaging. 
The building products segment manufactures a variety of building materials 
and manages the company's timber resources. The financial services segment 
operates a savings bank and engages in mortgage banking, real es tate and 
insurance brokerage activities. All prior periods have been restated to refl ect 
the discontinued operations of the bleached paperboard operation . 

These segments are managed as separate business units. The company 
evaluates performance based on operating income before special charges, 
corporate expenses and income Laxes. Corporate interest expense is not 
allocated to business segments. The accounting policies of the segments are 
the same as those described in the accounting policy notes to the financial 
statements. Corporate and other includes corporate expenses , special charges 
and discontinued operations. 

Refer to the tables on the following page. 
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Corporate 
Building Financial and Other 

For the year or at year end 1999: PaQer Products Servi ces Eliminations Total 
(in millions) 

Revenues from external customers Sl.798 $ 768 SI .116 8 - $3.682 
Depreciation , depletion and amortization 138 59 22 6 225 
Operating income 103 174 138 (:rn) :rn5 
Financial Services, net interest income - - 299 - 299 
Total assets 1.676 l,090 I :3.:321 99 16.186 
Investment in equity method inves tees 8 27 14 - 19 
Capital expenditures 80 92 26 6 20·1 

For the year or at year end 1998: 
Revenues from external customers $ 1,642 $ 613 $ 1,036 $ $ 3,291 
Depreciation , depletion and amortization 138 53 18 4 213 
Operating income 39 112 154 (75)a 230 
Financial Services, net interest income 244 244 
Total assets 1,728 1,043 12,376 72l b 15,868 
Investment in equity method inves tees 8 29 3 40 
Capital expendi Lures 79 73 39 5 196 

For the year or at year end 1997: 
Revenues from ex ternal custom ers $ 1,694 $ 617 $ 923 $ $ 3,234 
Depreciation , depleti on and amortization 137 50 16 3 206 
Operating income (54) 131 132 (25) 184 
Financial Services, net interest income 221 221 
Total assets 1,792 914 10,772 779b 14 ,257 
Investmen t in equity m ethod inves tees 7 19 4 30 
Capital expenditures 131 69 18 13 231 

3Jncludes a special chwge of $47 million, qfwhich $.3 7 million applies to the paper segment and $10 million applies 10 the building products segmenl . 

bJncludes nel assets of discontinued operations. 

The following table includes revenues and property and equipment based 
on the loca ti on of the operation: 

GEOGRAPHIC I NFOHMATlON 1999 1998 1997 
(in millions) 

For the year: 
Revenues from external customers 

United Stales s :~.552 $ 3,181 $ 3.145 
Canada 27 4 
Mexico 77 64 50 
South Ameri ca 26 42 39 

Total s :3.682 $ 3,291 $ 3,234 

At year end: 
Property and equipment 

United Sta tes s 2.090 $ 2,Jl 5 $ 2 ,105 

Canada 61 56 
Mexico 28 27 28 

South America 18 40 41 

Total s 2.197 $ 2,238 $ 2,174 
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Selected quarterly financial results for the years 1999 and 1998 are summarized below. Quarterl y financial results 
have been restated to refl ect discontinued operations. 

(in millions. except per share amounts) 

1999 

Total revenues 

Manufacturing net revenues 

Manufacturing gross profit 

Financial Services operating 
income before taxes 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income 

Earnings per share: 

Basic: 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net income 

Diluted: 

Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Net in come 

First 
Quarter 

s 850 

592 

101 

27 

s 26 

(7) 

s 19 

S0.47 

(O. l:~ ) 

S0.31 

SOA.6 

(O.n1 

so.:33 

Second 
Quarter 

s 904 

642 

128 

3i 

s 48 

(7) 

$ Lu 

S0.88 

(0.14) 

s 0.74 

$ 0.87 

(0.13) 

S0.74 

Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter 

s 955 s 97;3 

668 6M 

11:~ 142 

"J 36 

s 60 s 57 

(80) 2 

s 20) s 59 

s 1.07 $ l .03 

(l .4:~ ) 0.04 

8(0.:36) s 1.07 

s 1.07 s l.03 

( J. 1 :3 ) 0.04 

$(0.36) s l.07 
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First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

(in millions. except p er share amounts) 

1998 

Total revenues $ 837 $ 835 $ 821 $ 798 

Manufacturing net revenues 586 576 566 527 

Manufacturing gross profit 102 108 95 82 

Financial Services opera ting 
income before taxes 37 41 36 40 

Income from continuing operations $ 35 $ 39 $ 25 $ (ll)a 

Discontinued operations (9) (4) (l ) (7) 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (3) 

Net income $ 23 $ 35 $ 24 $ (18) 

Earnings per share: 

Basic: 

Income from continuing operations $ 0.62 $ 0.70 $ 0.47 $ (0.20) 

Discontinued operations (0.15) (0.08) (0.03) (0.12) 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.06) 

Net income $ 0 .41 $ 0.62 $ 0.44 $ (0.32) 

Diluted: 

Income from continuing operations $ 0.62 $ 0.70 $ 0.47 $ (0.20) 

Discontinued operations (0.15) (0.08) (0.03) (0.12) 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (0.06) 

Net income $ 0.41 $ 0.62 $ 0.44 $ (0.32) 

alncludes a pre-tax special charge of $47 million. 

Copied from an original at The History Center, Diboll, Texas.     www.TheHistoryCenterOnline.com     1993:001



REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 

Management has prepared and is responsible for the company's financial 
statements, including the notes thereto . They have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily 
include amounts based on judgments and estimates by management. All 
financial information in this annual report is consistent with that in the 
finan cial statements. 

The company maintains internal accounting control systems and related 
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets 
are safeguarded, that transactions are executed in accordance with 
management's authorization and properly recorded, and that accounting 
records may be relied upon for the preparation of financial statements and 
other finan cial information. The design , monitoring and revision of internal 
accounting control systems involve, among other things, management's 
judgment with respect to the relative cost and expected benefits of specific 
control measures. The company also maintains an internal auditing function 
that evaluates and formally reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
internal accounting control s, policies and procedures. 

The company's financial statements have been examined by Ernst & Young 
LLP, independent auditors, who have expressed their opinion with respect to 
the fairness of the presentation of the statements. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed solely of outside 
direc tors, meets with the independent auditors and internal auditors to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the work performed by them in di scharging their 
respective responsibilities and to assure their independent and free access to 
the committee. 

Kenneth M. Jastrow, II 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

David H. Dolben 
Vice President and 
Chief Accounting Officer 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 
Temple-Inland Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 1, 2000, and January 2, 1999, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, sharehold ers' equity, and 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 2000. 
These finan cial statements are the responsibility of the company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a tes t basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the finan cial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Temple-Inland Inc. 
and subsidiaries at January 1, 2000, and January 2, 1999, and the 
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended January 1, 2000, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Houston , Texas 
January 28, 2000 
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Shareholder Inforination 

First Chicago Trust Company of New York 
525 Washington Blvd. 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310 
201.324.1225 

Ernst & Young LLP 
Houston, Texas 

The annual meeting of shareholders of Temple-Inland Inc. 
will be held at the company's corporate headquarters, 
303 South Temple Drive, Diboll, Texas, on May 5, 2000, 
at 9:00 a.m. local time. 

~-~ 
Temple-Inland Inc. common stock is listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange, ticker 
symbol TIN. 

~- l 

As of December 31, 1999, there were 6,304 shareholders of 
record of the company's common stock. 

Temple-Inland offers its shareholders a convenient and 
economical way to increase their investment in the company's 
common stock through the purchase of additional shares with 
quarterly dividends and optional cash payments. Under the 
Temple-Inland Inc. Dividend Reinvestment Plan, administered 
by First Chicago Trust Company of New York, Temple-Inland 
pays the brokerage fees and service charges, and the 
shareholder receives the benefit of larger quantity purchases 
and optional free custodial services. For more information 
about the Plan, contact First Chicago Trust Company of 
New York, Dividend Reinvestment Plans, P.O. Box 2598, 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07303-2598, 201.324.1225. 

l --
A copy of Temple-Inland Inc.'s annual report on Form 10-K, 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, will 
be sent without charge upon written request made to the 
company's Shareholder Relations Department. 

Temple-Inland Inc. 
Drawer N 
Diboll, Texas 75941 
936.829.1313 
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Temple-Inland Inc . 
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INLAND * 1l!ie~lJll!'f! ~CUARANTY. 
~, FEDERAL BANK Fsa 
A Temple-Inland Financial Services Company 

Tempk-Inland 
FC>REST A Temple-/11/a11d Company 
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